Supplement to Official Gazette Extraordinary No. 35, Vol. 64, 1st August, 1977—Part B

L.N. 48 of 1977

THE SUPREME COURT RULES

(SECTION 121 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF THE FEDERATION OF NIGERIA)

CONTENTS

ORDER 1

General

Rule

- Citation and Commencement
- 2. Interpretation
- 3. Service
- 4. Conflict with State Laws
- 5. Enlargement of time and departure from Rules
- 6. Fees
- Registry
- 8. Hours of opening to public
- 9. Sessions
- 10. Notification of Sittings
- 11. Adjournment
- 12. Chief Registrar
- 13. Other Registrars
- 14. Seal of the Court
- Powers of Chief Registrar
- 16. Books to be kept by Registrar
- 17. Files for documents
- 18. Setting aside or varying order of Registrar
- 19. Forms

ORIGINAL JURISDICTION

ORDER 2

PROCEEDINGS IN THE ORIGINAL JURISDICTION OF THE COURT

- Procedure not provided for
- 2. Commencement of Proceedings
- 3. Endorsement of Summons
- 4. Mode of entering appearance

Rule

- 5. Notice of entry to Plaintiff
- 6. Address for Service
- 7. Procedure in Interlocutory Applications
- 8. Motion to be on Notice
- 9. Length of Notice
- 10. Motions may be dismissed or adjourned where necessary notice not given

ORDER 3

PROCEEDINGS COMMENCED BY STATEMENT OF CLAIM

- 1. Procedure when a final order is sought
- 2. Issue of Summons
- 3. Form of Summons
- 4. Summons for Directions

ORDER 4

TATED CASES

- 1. Stating questions of Law
- 2. Contents of case stated
- 3. Reference to Documents
- 4. Inferences from Facts and Documents
- 5. Argument confined to facts in case
- 6. Signing and filing of case stated
- 7. Written Agreement of Parties
- 8. Oral Agreement before Court
- Procedure in absence of Agreement

ORDER 5

DECLARATORY JUDGMENTS

- 1. Declaratory Judgments may be sought
- 2. Construction of statutes on originating summons
- 3. Construction of other instruments
- 4. Service
- Method of application
- 6. Originating summons not sole means of obtaining declaratory judgment

ORDER 6

Rule

REFERENCES AS TO CONSTITUTION AND RESERVED POINTS OF LAW

- Stating a case I.
- Signature of case stated 2.
- Form of case stated 3.
- 4. Right of audience

APPELLATE JURISDICTION

ORDER 7

CIVIL APPEALS

- Application I.
- Notice and grounds of appeal 2.
- Applications to Court 3.
- When appeal is deemed to be brought; enlargement of time 4.
- Notice of appeal. On whom served 5.
- 6. Addresses for Service
- Registrar's summons 7.
- Record of Appeal 8.
- Cost of Record
- 9: Security for costs

10.

- Additional Security for costs II.
- Transmission of record 12.
- Respondent's notice of contention that judgment should be varied 13. or affirmed on other grounds
- 14. Notice of preliminary objection to be filed
- Amendment of notice of appeal or respondent's notice 15.
- 16. Directions of the Court as to service of notice of appeal or respondent's notice
- Withdrawal of appeal 17.
- Appeal by respondent after appellant's appeal is withdrawn 18.
- Non-compliance with conditions of appeal 19.
- **Exhibits** 20.
- Control of proceedings during pendency of appeal 21.
- 22. Submission by party not appearing
- Non-appearance of appellant 23.
- Non-appearance of respondent 24.
- Application to set aside ex parte judgment 25.
- General Powers of the Court 26.
- Powers of the Court as to new trial 27.
- 28. Judgment

Rule	
29.	Order
30.	Review of Judgment
3₹.	Enforcement of Judgments
32.	Execution of Judgment by court below
33.	Costs
34.	Fees
35.	Proceedings by poor persons
36.	Costs in proceedings by poor persons
e: 8	Order 8
i.	
	CRIMINAL APPEALS
I.	Appeals to which Order applies
2.	Applications not specially provided for
3.	Appellant to file notice of appeal or notice of application for leave to appeal or notice of application for extension of time
4 (I)	Notices of Appeal, who should sign
4 (2)	How notices, etc. may be given or sent
4 (3)	Where appellant unable to write
4 (4)	Where question of sanity involved
4 (5)	Notice, etc. on behalf of Corporations
5-	Application for extension of time
6.	Notice of application for leave to appeal
7.	Dealing with applications for leave to appeal and other preliminary applications
8.	Forwarding of proceedings of court below to Registrar
9.	Fees
10.	Record in criminal appeals from the court below in its original jurisdiction
11.	Appeals in criminal matters from the court below in its appellate jurisdiction
12.	Report of Judge of Court of Trial
13.	Furnishing Judge of Court of Trial with materials for report
14.	Bail
15.	Fines
16.	Varying order of restitution of property
	Non-exemption of Orders of Postitution

Restrictions on issue of certificate of conviction

Abandonment of appeal-

18.

19.

Rule

- 20. Notice of abandonment of appeal may be withdrawn
- 21 (1) Attendance of witness before the Court
- 21 (2) Application to Court to hear witnesses
- 21 (3) Order appointing examiner
- 21 (4) Furnishing examiner with exhibits, etc. for examination
- 21 (5) Notification of date of examination
- 21 (6) Evidence to be taken on oath
- 21 (7) Deposition of witness, how to take
- 21 (8) Expenses of witnesses before examiner
- 21 (9) Presence of parties at examination of witnesses
- 22. Proceedings on reference
- 23 (1) Notification of final determination of appeals
- 23 (2) Notification of appeal in capital cases
- 24. Notification of result of appeal
- 25. Return of original depositions, etc.
- 26. Enforcement of orders

ORDER 9

FILING OF BRIEFS OF ARGUMENT

- 1. Application for leave to appeal
- 2. Preparation of record of apper1
- 3. Preparation and filing of Briefs of Argument.
- 4. Separate Cases
- 5. List of Law Reports, etc. to be forwarded to Registrar
- Oral Argument
- 7. Consequences of failure to file Briefs

ORDER 10

Miscellaneous

Waiver of non-compliance with Rules

FIRST SCHEDULE

CIVIL FORMS

7.	١	20,050	S
L	01	77	t

- 1. Statement of claim
- 2. Civil summons
- 3. Memorandum of entry of appearance
- 4. Notice of acceptance
- 5. Notice of motion
- 6. Summons for directions
- 7. Order on summons for directions
- 8. Stated case
- 9. Originating summons for a Declaratory Judgment
- 10. References as to the Constitution
- 11. Reserved point of law
- 12. Notice of appeal
- 13. Notice of motion for leave to appeal
- 14. Summons to parties by Registrar to settle record
- 15. Bond for costs on appeal
- 16. Certificate of service of notice of appeal
- 17. Certificate of Registrar that conditions of appeal have been fulfilled
- 18. Notice to parties of dispatch of a record
- 19. Notice by respondent of intention to contend that decision of court below should be varied
- 20. Notice of intention to contend that judgment should be upheld on grounds other than those relied on by the court below
- 21. Notice of intention-to rely upon a preliminary objection
- 22. Notice of withdrawal of appeal
- 23. Notice of withdrawal of appeal by agreement
- 24. Certificate of non-compliance with conditions of appeal
- 25. Form of declaration that a party does not wish to be present or represented at the hearing
- 26. Certificate of the Order of the Court

SECOND SCHEDULE

CRIMINAL FORMS

Form

- Notice of appeal from decision of a Court sitting as a Court of first instance
- Notice of application for leave to appeal from decision of a Court sitting as a Court of first instance
- 3. Notice of appeal from decision of a Court sitting in its appellate jurisdiction
- 4. Notice of application for leave to appeal from decision of a Court sitting in its appellate jurisdiction
- 5. Notice of appeal (or application for leave to appeal) by prosecutor
- 6. Notification by Registrar of High Court or Federal Court of Appeal of result of application for leave to appeal
- 7. Notice of application for extension of time within which to appeal
- 8. Notification to appellant of a single Justice's decision
- 9. Notice of Appeal by appellant from refusal of a single Justice
- 10. Recognizance of bail of appellant
- 11. Recognizance of appellant's sureties
- 12. Warrant for arrest of appellant on bail
- 13. Notice of abandonment of appeal
- 14. Notification of abandonment of appeal
- Notice of application for leave to withdraw an abandonment of appeal
- 16. Order to witness to attend Court for examination
- 17. Appellant's application for further witnesses
- 18. Notice to witness to attend before an examiner
- 19. Caption for deposition of witness examined before an examiner
- 20. Notification to appellant of result of application
- 21. Notice to authorities of result of application
- 22. Notification to appellant of the result of his appeal
- 23. Notice to authorities of result of appeal

THIRD SCHEDULE

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE FEDERATION

(No. 20 OF 1963)

THE SUPREME COURT RULES, 1977

In exercise of the powers conferred by section 121 (2) of the Constitution of the Federation, the Supreme Court of Nigeria hereby makes the following rules:—

ORDER I.

ORDER. 1

General

Citation and Commencement. 1. These Rules may be cited as the Supreme Court Rules, 1977, and shall come into force on 1st September, 1977, save that the current Rules shall continue to operate in regard to appeals already pending in the Court.

Interpretation.

- 2. In these Rules, unless it is otherwise expressly provided or required by the context:
 - "appeal" includes an application for leave to appeal;
 - "appellant" means a party appealing from a decision or applying for leave in that behalf and includes his legal representative;
 - "Chief Justice" means the Chief Justice of Nigeria;
 - "the Court" means the Supreme Court of Nigeria;
 - "court below" means the court or tribunal from which the appeal is brought;
 - "Court of Appeal" means the Federal Court of Appeal established by the Constitution of the Federation;
 - "Judge" means a Justice of the Court;
 - "High Court" means a High Court established for a State by the Constitution of the State;

"legal representative" means a person admitted to practise in the Court who has been retained by or assigned to a party to represent him in the proceedings before the Court;

ORDER 1.

"the Act" means the Supreme Court Act, 1960;

No. 12 of 1960.

"record" means the aggregate of papers relating to an appeal (including the pleadings, proceedings, evidence and judgments) proper to be laid before the Court on the hearing of the appeal;

"Registrar of the court below" includes the Chief Registrar and any Registrar or Deputy Registrar of the court below, and any officer of the court below exercising functions analogous to those of the Chief Registrar of the Federal Court of Appeal or of the Federal Revenue Court or of a High Court;

"respondent" in a civil appeal means any party (other than the appellant) directly affected by the appeal, and in a criminal appeal means the person who undertakes the defence of the judgment appealed against;

"Rules" means these Rules or any amendment thereto or any other additional Rules made under the Constitution of the Federation, and includes the Forms appended to these Rules.

3.—(1) Any reference in these Rules to an address for service means an address within Nigeria where notices, pleadings, orders, summonses, warrants and other documents, proceedings, and written communications, if not required to be served personally, may be left, or to which they may be sent.

Service.

(2) Where under these Rules any person has given an address for service, any notice or other written communication which is not required to be served personally shall be sufficiently served upon him if it is left at that address or sent by registered post to that address, and in any case where the date of service by post is material section 25 of the Interpretation Act, 1964 shall apply.

ORDER 1.

- (3) Where under these Rules any notice or other application to the Court, or to the court below, is required to have an address for service endorsed on it, it shall not be deemed to have been properly filed unless such an address is endorsed on it.
- (4) Any person desiring to change his address for service shall notify the Registrar, who shall thereupon communicate the new address for service to anyone to whom he may have communicated the former address.
- (5) Where any person has given the address of a legal practitioner as his address for service and the legal practitioner is not or has ceased to be instructed by him for the purpose of the proceedings concerned, it shall be the duty of the legal practitioner to inform the Registrar as soon as may be that he is not or no longer authorised to accept service on behalf of such person, and if he omits to do so he may be ordered to pay any costs occasioned thereby.
- (6) Except as may be otherwise provided in these Rules or in any other written law, no notice or other written communication in proceedings in the original or appellate jurisdiction of the Court, need be served personally except—
 - (a) in proceedings in the original jurisdiction of the Court, the writ of summons or other document issued by the Court for the institution of the proceedings; and
 - (b) in proceedings in the appellate jurisdiction of the Court, the notice of appeal: Provided that if the Court is satisfied that the notice of appeal has in fact been communicated to the respondent no objection to the hearing of the appeal shall lie on the ground that the notice of appeal was not served personally.
- (7) Where a Minister, or Commissioner or the Attorney-General, or the Director of Public Prosecutions or any other public officer of the Federation or of a State is a party ex officio or as representing the Federal Government or a State Government as the case may be in any proceedings in the Court, whether civil or criminal, any notice or other document may be served on him by leaving it at or by sending it by registrered post to his chambers or office and service in this manner shall be as effective as if it were personal service.

(8) Where any document is required by these Rules to be served personally, it shall be sufficiently served if it is served in the manner prescribed by law for the personal service of a writ of summons issued by the High Court having jurisdiction in the State in which service is to be effected, and if it appears to the Court that for any reason personal service cannot be conveniently effected, the Court shall have the same power as that High Court to direct that service be effected in some other way.

ORDER I.

- (9) Where any person out of the jurisdiction is a necessary or proper party to an action commenced in the original jurisdiction of the Court and properly brought against some other person duly served within the jurisdiction, the Court may allow service of a summons out of the jurisdiction.
- (10) Every application for an order for leave to serve a summons on a defendant out of the jurisdiction shall be supported by evidence by affidavit or otherwise showing in what place or country such defendant is or probably may be found, and the grounds upon which the application is made.
- (11) Any order giving leave to effect service out of the jurisdiction shall prescribe the mode of service, and shall limit a time after such service within which such defendant is to enter an appearance, such time to depend on the place or country where or within which the summons is to be served, and the Court may receive an affidavit or statutory declaration of such service having been effected as prima facie evidence thereof.
- 4. The practice and procedure of the Court shall be as prescribed by these Rules notwithstanding any written law or rule of practice to the contrary obtaining in any of the States.

Conflict with State Laws.

5. The Court may enlarge the time provided by these Rules for the doing of anything to which these Rules apply, or may direct a departure from these Rules in any other way when this is required in the interest of justice.

Enlargement of time and departure from Rules.

6. The fees set out in the Third Schedule shall be payable in respect of the matters to which they relate.

Fees.

ORDER I. Registry.

- 7.—(1) The Registry of the Court is situate at Lagos and, except when otherwise expressly provided, all documents and proceedings shall be filed in this Registry, provided that whilst the Court is sitting in any place other than Lagos any documents or proceedings in connection with any matter to be dealt with at such sessions may be filed with the Registrar of the Court at such place.
- (2) A document may be filed in the Registry of the Court either by being delivered there by the party or his legal representative or agent in person or by being sent there by registered post.

Hours of opening to public.

of the Chief Justice, be open to the public on every day in the year from eight o'clock in the forenoon to one o'clock in the afternoon, except: (a) on Sundays or on any day declared in Lagos as a

8. The Registry of the Court shall, subject to the directions

- public holiday by virtue of the Public Holiday Act (Cap. 166); or
- (b) on Saturdays when the Registry shall be open to the public from eight o'clock to eleven o'clock in the forenoon.

Sessions.

9. Sessions of the Court shall be convened and constituted and the time, venue and forum for all sessions and for hearing interlocutory applications shall be settled in accordance with directions to be given by the Chief Justice.

Notification of Sittings.

10.—(1) The sittings of the Court and the matters to be disposed of at such sittings shall be advertised and notified in such manner as the Chief Justice may direct:

Provided that the Court may in its discretion hear any appeal and deal with any other matter whether or not the same has been advertised.

(2) This Rule shall not apply to the hearing of any matter by a single Judge. -

Adjournment.

11. The Court may at any time on application or of its own accord adjourn any proceedings pending before it from time to time and from place to place.

Chief Registrar.

12. The Chief Registrar shall have the custody of the records of the Court and shall-exercise such other functions as are assigned to him by these Rules.

13. The Chief Justice may assign, and the Chief Registrar may, with the approval of the Chief Justice, delegate to any Registrar of the Court any functions required by these Rules to be exercised by the Chief Registrar.

ORDER 1. Other Registrars.

14.—(1) Subject to the provisions of this Rule, the Seal of the Court and any duplicate thereof shall be kept in the custody of the Chief Registrar, and except as the Chief Justice may otherwise direct shall not be affixed to any writ, rule, order or other process or to any document without the express authority of the Chief Registrar.

Seal of the Court

(2) If at any time a session of the Court is held outside Lagos, a duplicate of the Seal of the Court may, on the instructions of the Chief Justice, be entrusted to and kept in the custody of a Registrar of the Court for the purpose of that session and may be used for such purposes in accordance with any directions given by the Chief Justice or by the Judge presiding at that session.

15. Except as may be otherwise provided in the Constitution of the Federation, or in any other enactment, the Chief Registrar shall have such jurisdiction powers and duties as are given him by these Rules or such further powers and duties as the Chief Justice may direct.

Powers of Chief Registrar,

- 16.—(1) The Registrar shall keep:
 - (a) a Criminal Appeal Book;
 - (b) a Civil Appeal Book; and
 - (c) a Civil Record Book;

each of which shall contain an index in alphabetical order.

- (2) The following particulars shall be entered in the Criminal Appeal Book, and the Civil Appeal Book:
 - (a) the number of the appeal;
 - (b) the names of the appellant and respondent;
 - (c) the court from which the appeal is brought;
 - (d) the date and place of hearing of the appeal;
 - (e) the names of counsel;
 - (f) the subject matter of the appeal;
 - (g) the judgment of the Court;
 - (h) any subsequent proceedings and remarks.

Books to be kept by Registrar. ORDER I.

- (3) The following particulars shall be entered in the Civil Record Book:
 - (a) the number of the application;
 - (b) the names of the parties;
 - (c) the date and place of hearing of the case;
 - (d) the names of counsel:
 - (e) the subject matter of the application;
 - (f) the judgment of the Court;
 - (g) any subsequent proceedings and remarks.

Files for documents.

17. As soon as notice of appeal is delivered or an application for the exercise by the Court of its original jurisdiction is made to the Court or a Judge, the Registrar shall prepare a file in which pleadings or documents relating to the appeal or case shall be filed and on the front page thereof shall be recorded particulars of such pleadings or documents and the dates on which they are received.

Setting aside or varying order of Registrar. 18. Any person aggrieved by anything done or ordered to be done by the Registrar other than anything ordered or done by the direction of the Chief Justice, may apply to a Judge to have the act, order or ruling complained of set aside or varied and the Judge may give such directions or make such order thereon as he thinks fit. Such application shall be made by notice of motion supported by affidavits setting out the complaint and the relief sought.

Forms.

rg. The forms set out in the First and Second Schedules to these Rules, or forms as near thereto as circumstances permit, shall be used in all cases to which such forms are applicable.

ORIGINAL JURISDICTION

ORDER 2.

ORDER 2

Proceedings in the Original Jurisdiction of the Court

Procedure not provided for.

r. In the exercise of the original jurisdiction of the Court, where no provision exists in these Rules, the practice and procedure of the Court shall be conducted in substantial conformity with the practice and procedure for the time being observed in the appropriate High Court.

2. Except where otherwise expressly provided, all proceedings for the exercise by the Court of its original jurisdiction shall be commenced by application to the Court filed in accordance with Rule 7 of Order 1 of these Rules.

ORDER 2. Commencement of Proceedings.

3. There shall be endorsed on every summons issued under Order 3 or Order 5 of these Rules a notice requiring the defendant to enter an appearance within thirty days after the summons has been served.

Endorsement of summons

4.—(1) A defendant shall enter appearance by filing in the Registry:

Mode of entering appearance.

(a) a memorandum in writing dated on the day of its delivery, containing the name of the defendant's legal representative or stating that the defendant defends in person; and

Civil Form 3.

- (b) a duplicate of the memorandum of appearance.
- (2) The Registrar shall seal the duplicate copy of the memorandum of appearance with a seal bearing the words "Appearance entered", and showing the date on which it is sealed, and then return it to the person entering the appearance.
- (3) The duplicate copy of the memorandum of appearance so sealed shall be a certificate that the appearance was entered on the day indicated by the seal.
- 5. A defendant shall, on the day on which he entered an appearance, give or send written notice of his having entered an appearance to the plaintiff's legal representative or, if the plaintiff sues in person, to the plaintiff himself.

Notice of entry to plaintiff.

Civil Form 4.

6. Every application for the exercise by the Court of its original jurisdiction, and every memorandum of appearance shall contain a proper address for service to the satisfaction of the Registrar and shall not be received unless it conforms to this Rule.

Address for Service.

7. An application for an interlocutory order shall be by motion entitled in the proceeding in which it is made and shall be supported by an affidavit or affidavits of the facts on which the applicant will rely.

Procedure in interlocutory applications.

Civil Form 5.

ORDER 2. Motion to be on Notice. 8. No motion shall be made without previous notice to the parties affected thereby, but the Court, if satisfied that the delay caused by proceeding in the ordinary way would or might entail irreparable mischief, may make any order ex parte upon such terms as to costs or otherwise, and subject to such undertaking, if any, as the Court may think just; and any party affected by such order may move within fifteen days of the service of the order upon him to set it aside.

Length of Notice. 9. Unless the Court gives special leave to the contrary, there must be at least three clear days between the service of a notice of motion and the day named in the notice for hearing the motion.

Motions may be dismissed or adjourned where necessary notice not given. ro. If on the hearing of a motion the Court shall be of the opinion that any person to whom notice has not been given, ought to have or to have had such notice, the Court may either dismiss or adjourn the hearing thereof, in order that such notice may be given, upon such terms, if any, as the Court may think fit to impose.

ORDER'3.

ORDER 3

Proceedings commenced by Statement of Claim

Procedure when a final order is sought Civil Form 1. I. In any cause other than one commenced under Order 5 of these Rules, the application to the Court shall be made by the filing of a statement of claim in accordance with rule 7 of Order 1 of these Rules.

Issue of Summons. Civil Form 2.

2. When a statement of claim has been filed a summons shall be issued to the defendant to appear and answer the claim.

Form of Summons. 3. Every summons shall be signed by the Registrar and sealed with the Seal of the Court and shall be accompanied by a copy of the statement of claim.

Summons for directions. Civil Forms 6 and 7. 4. The plaintiff shall, within fourteen days after the defendant has entered an appearance, take out a summons for directions returnable before a Judge in Chambers, and the Judge shall, on the hearing of the summons, give such directions with respect to proceedings, interrogatories, the admission of documents and facts, the discovery, inspection and production of documents and such other interlocutory matters as he may think expedient.

ORDER 4

Stated Cases

- 1. The parties to a proceeding commenced under Order 3 of these Rules may at any stage concur in stating the question of law arising in the proceeding in the form of a stated case for the opinion of the Court.
- The stated case shall be divided into paragraphs numbered consecutively and shall concisely state such facts and documents as are necessary to enable the court to decide the questions raised by the stated case.
- 3. Upon the argument of the case the Court and the parties may refer to the whole contents of the documents stated.
- 4. The Court may draw from the facts and documents stated any inference, whether of fact or law, which might have been drawn from them if proved at a trial,
- 5. No facts or documents other than those stated in the case shall be referred to upon the argument save with the consent of all parties.
- 6. A stated case concurred in by the parties to a proceeding Signing shall be signed by the several parties or their legal representaof case tives and filed with the Registrar. stated.
- 7. The parties to a stated case may, if they think fit, enter into an agreement in writing that, upon the determination by the Court of the question or questions of law raised in the stated case, judgment shall be entered by the Court to any effect within its jurisdiction and with or without costs, and such agreement shall be filed with the Registrar.
- 8. Likewise the parties may, in the presence of the Court, either themselves or by their legal representatives, verbally make an agreement, as to the judgment to be entered upon the determination by the Court of the questions of law raised

in the stated case.

Stating questions of law. Civil Form 8.

ORDER 4.

Reference to documents.

Contents of case

stated.

from facts and documents. Argument confined

to facts

in case.

Inferences

and filing

Written agreement of parties.

Oral agreement before Court.

ORDER 4.

Procedure
in absence
of agreement.

9. Where no such agreement is made, the proceedings in the cause shall be resumed, but the questions of law decided in the stated case shall not be reopened in the Court and the application shall proceed to its final determination upon the decision upon the law recorded after the hearing of the stated case.

ORDER 5.

ORDER 5

Declaratory Judgments

Declaratory judgments may be sought. r. No action or proceeding shall be open to objection, on the ground that a merely declaratory judgment or order is sought thereby, and the Court may make binding declarations of right whether any consequential relief is or could be claimed or not.

Construction of statutes on originating summons. 2. Any person claiming any legal or equitable right in a case where the determination of the question whether he is entitled to the right depends on the construction of the Constitution of the Federation or of a State may apply for the issue of an originating summons for the determination of such question of construction and for a declaration as to the right claimed.

Construction of other instruments. 3. Any person claiming to be interested under deed or other written instrument, may apply for the issue of an originating summons for the determination of any question of construction arising under the instrument and for a declaration of the rights of the person interested.

Service.

4. The Court may direct such persons to be served with a copy or copies of the summons as it may think fit.

Method of application.
Civil Form 9.

5. The application shall be made in Civil Form 9 in the First Schedule to these Rules and shall be supported by such evidence as the Court may require.

Originating summons not sole means of obtaining declaratory judgment. 6. Rules 2 and 3 of this Order shall not affect the right of any person seeking a declaratory judgment to institute proceedings by filing a statement of claim under Order 3 and on an application by originating summons the Court shall not be bound to determine any such question of construction if in the opinion of the Court it ought not to be determined on originating summons.

ORDER 6

ORDER 6.

References as to Constitution and Reserved Points of Law

1. When a lower court refers any question as to the interpretation of the Constitution of the Federation or the Constitution of a State to the Court under section 115 of the Constitution of the Federation, or reserves any question of law for the consideration of the Court in accordance with any written Law, the lower court referring or reserving the question of law, as the case may be, shall state a case in Civil Form 10 or 11 in the First Schedule to these Rules, whichever may be appropriate, and the Registrar of the lower court shall forward ten copies direct to the Registrar.

Stating a case.

Civil Forms 10 and 11.

2.—(1) When the lower court making an application consists of three or more judges, the case shall be stated on behalf of the lower court by a majority of those judges.

Signature of case

- (2) Where a question is referred or reserved by the lower court the question shall be signed by all or by a majority of the judges of the court referring or reserving the question.
- 3. A case stated under this Order shall be divided into paragraphs, which, as near as may be, shall be confined to distinct portions of the subject and every paragraph shall be numbered consecutively. It shall state such of the findings of fact as are necessary to explain the question on which the decision of the Court is sought but except where, in a criminal matter, the question is whether there is any evidence to support any decision, or whether the evidence for the prosecution disclosed a case for the defendant to answer, it shall not contain a statement of the evidence. It shall also state the contentions of the parties, the opinion or decision (if any) of the court stating the case and the questions of law for the determination of the Court. In cases to which s.243A of the Criminal Procedure Act (or similar provision in any State law) applies, the case shall state whether the hearing has been adjourned or the verdict has been postponed or sentence has been respited and whether the person accused or convicted has been committed to prison or admitted to bail.

Form of case stated.

4.—(1) Subject to the provisions of this rule, the following persons shall be entitled as of right to appear in person or by by a legal practitioner at the hearing of any case stated under this Order:

Right of audience.

ORDER 6.

- (a) the parties to the proceedings in which the question of law arose; and
- (b) in any case stated involving a substantial question of law as to the validity of any law enacted by the Federal Legislature, the Attorney-General of the Federation.
- (2) The following persons may, by leave of the Court, appear in person or by a legal practitioner at the hearing of any case stated on the reference to the Court of any question as to the interpretation of the Constitution of the Federation or the Constitution of a State, as the case may be:
 - (a) where he is not entitled to appear as of right under paragraph (1) (b) of this rule, the Attorney-General of the Federation; and
 - (b) the Attorney-General of any State.
- (3) The Registrar shall forward to the Attorney-General of the Federation a copy of any case stated to which paragraph (1) (b) of this rule applies. Any other person who is entitled as of right to appear, and any persons who may appear by leave of the Court, may obtain a copy of the case stated from the Registrar of the lower court on payment of such fee as may be prescribed.

APPELLATE JURISDICTION

ORDER 7.

ORDER 7

Civil Appeals

Application.

I. This Order shall apply to appeals to the Court from any court or tribunal acting either in its original or its appellate jurisdiction in civil cases, and to matters related thereto.

Notice and grounds of appeal.
Civil
Form 12.

2.—(1) All appeals shall be by way of rehearing and shall be brought by notice (hereinafter called "the notice of appeal") to be filed in the Registry of the court below which shall set forth the grounds of appeal, shall state whether the whole or part only of the decision of the court below is complained of (in the latter case specifying such part) and shall state also the exact nature of the relief sought and the names and addresses of all parties directly affected by the appeal, and shall be accompanied by a sufficient number of copies for service on all such parties. It shall also have endorsed on it an address for service.

- (2) If the grounds of appeal allege misdirection or error Order 7. in law the particulars and the nature of the misdirection or error shall be clearly stated.
- (3) The notice of appeal shall set forth concisely and under distinct heads the grounds upon which the appellant intends to rely at the hearing of the appeal without any argument or narrative and shall be numbered consecutively.
- (4) No ground which is vague or general in terms or which discloses no reasonable ground of appeal shall be permitted, save the general ground that the judgment is against the weight of the evidence, and any ground of appeal or any part thereof which is not permitted under this rule may be struck out by the Court of its own motion or on application by the respondent.
- (5) The appellant shall not without the leave of the Court urge or be heard in support of any ground of appeal not mentioned in the notice of appeal, but the Court may in its discretion allow the appellant to amend the grounds of appeal upon payment of the fees prescribed for making such amendment and upon such terms as the Court may deem just.
- (6) Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions the Court in deciding the appeal shall not be confined to the grounds set forth by the appellant :

Provided that the Court shall not if it allows the appeal rest its decision on any ground not set forth by the appellant unless the respondent has had sufficient opportunity of contesting the case on that ground.

- (7) The Court shall have the power to strike out a notice of appeal when an appeal is not competent.
- 3.—(1) Every application to the Court shall be by notice of motion supported by affidavit. It shall state the rule under which it is brought and the ground for the relief sought.

Applications to Court.

- (2) Any application to the Court for leave to appeal (other than an application made after the expiration of the time for appealing) shall be by notice of motion which shall be served on the party or parties affected.
- (3) Where an application has been refused by the court below, an application for a similar purpose may be made to the Court within fifteen days after the date of the refusal.

Civil

Form 13.

ORDER 7.

- (4) Wherever under these Rules an application may be made either to the court below or to the Court it shall not be made in the first instance to the Court except where there are special circumstances which make it impossible or impracticable to apply to the court below.
- (5) If leave to appeal is granted by the Court or by the court below the appellant shall file a notice of appeal.

When appeal is deemed to be brought.

4.—(1) An appeal shall be deemed to have been brought when the notice of appeal has been filed in the Registry of the court below.

Enlargement of time. (2) Every application for an enlargement of time in which to appeal shall be supported by an affidavit setting forth good and substantial reasons for the failure to appeal within the prescribed period, and by grounds of appeal which prima facie show good cause why the appeal should be heard. When time is so enlarged a copy of the order granting such enlargement shall be annexed to the notice of appeal.

Notice of appeal. On whom served.

- 5.—(1) The Registrar of the court below shall, after the notice of appeal has been filed, cause to be served a true copy thereof upon each of the parties mentioned in the notice of appeal. It shall not be necessary to serve any party not directly affected.
- (2) Notwithstanding anything in Rule 3 (6) (b) of Order 1, where in any proceeding in the court below a party has given an address for service, notice of appeal from any decision made under such proceeding may be served on such party at such address for service, notwithstanding that the address may be that of a legal representative who has not been retained for the purpose of an appeal, and notice of any application preparatory or incidental to any such appeal may be served in like manner at any time before the date on which the respondent gives notice of his address for service in accordance with the immediately following rule.

Addresses for service.

6.—(1) Every person who by virtue of service on him of a notice of appeal becomes a respondent to any appeal or intended appeal shall within thirty days after service on him of the notice of appeal file in duplicate with the Registrar of the court below notice of a full and sufficient address for service in such number of copies as the said Registrar shall require. The Registrar of the court below shall forthwith send a copy of the notice of address to the Registrar and shall cause a copy thereof to be served on the appellant.

- (2) Such notice may be signed by the respondent or his legal representative.
- ORDER 7.
- (3) If any respondent fails or omits to file such notice of address for service it shall not be necessary to serve on him any other proceedings in the appeal or any notice of hearing thereof.
- (4) Any party to an appeal or intended appeal may change his address for service at any time by filing and serving on all other parties to the appeal or intended appeal notice of such change.
- 7.—(1) The Registrar of the court below shall after the Registrar's expiration of the time prescribed for filing notice of address for service summon the parties before him to :-

summons. Civil Form 14.

- (a) settle the documents to be included in the record of appeal;
- (b) fix the amount to be deposited by the appellant to cover the estimated cost of making up and forwarding the record of appeal;
- (c) fix the amount to be deposited by the appellant or secured by bond for the due prosecution of the appeal and the payment of any costs.
- (2) The said Registrar shall, whether any of the parties attend or not provided that notice has been duly served on those parties who filed an address for service, proceed to settle and determine those matters in accordance with the provisions of Rules 8, 9 and 10 of this Order.
- 8.—(1) The Record of Appeal shall contain the following documents in the order set out :-

Record of Appeal.

- (a) the index;
- (b) a statement by the Registrar of the court below giving brief particulars of the case and including a schedule of the fees paid;
- (c) copies of the documents settled by the Registrar of the court below for inclusion in the Record of Appeal in accordance with Rule 7 of this Order;
- (d) a copy of the notice of appeal and other relevant documents filed in connection with the appeal.

ORDER 7.

- (2) The Registrar of the court below, as well as the parties, shall endeavour to exclude from the record all documents (more particularly such as are merely formal) that are not relevant to the subject matter of the appeal and generally to reduce the bulk of the record as far as practicable, taking special care to avoid duplication of documents and unnecessary repetition of headings and other merely formal parts of documents; but the documents omitted to be copied shall be enumerated in a list at the end of the Record. Where part or parts only of any lengthy document are directly relevant to the subject matter of the appeal, it shall be permissible to omit to copy such parts of the document as are neither directly relevant to the subject matter of the appeal nor necessary for the proper understanding of the part or parts that are so relevant.
- (3) If the Registrar of the court below or any party objects to the inclusion of a document on the ground that it is unnecessary or irrelevant and the other party nevertheless insists upon its being included, the document shall be included and the record shall, with a view to the subsequent adjustment of the costs of and incidental to the inclusion of such document, indicate in the index of papers or otherwise the fact that, and the party by whom, the inclusion of the document was objected to.
- (4) It shall not be necessary for copies of individual documents to be separately certified but the Registrar of the court below shall certify as correct each copy of the Record transmitted by him in accordance with these Rules.

Cost of Record.

9. The appellant shall within such time as the Registrar of the court below directs deposit with him a sum fixed to cover the estimated expense of making up and forwarding the record of appeal calculated at the full cost of one copy for the appellant and one-tenth cost for each of the ten copies for the use of the Court.

Security for costs. Civil Form 15. to. The appellant shall within such time as the Registrar of the court below directs deposit such sum as shall be determined by such Registrar or give security therefor by bond with one or more sureties to his satisfaction as such Registrar may direct for the due prosecution of the appeal and for the payment of any costs which may be ordered to be paid by the appellant.

Provided that no deposit or security shall be required where the deposit would be payable by the Government of the Federation or of a State, or by any Government department.

ORDER 7.

r. The Court may, where necessary, require security for costs or for performance of the orders to be made on appeal, in addition to the sum determined under Rule 10 of this Order.

Additional security for costs.

Transmission of

Forms 16 and 17.

record. Civil

- 12.—(1) The Registrar of the court below shall transmit the record when ready together with:—
 - (a) a certificate of service of the notice of appeal;
 - (b) a certificate that the conditions imposed under Rules 9 and 10 of this Order have been fulfilled;
 - (c) ten copies of the record for the use of the Judges;
 - (d) the docket or file of the case in the court below containing all papers or documents filed by the parties in connection therewith, to the Registrar of the Court.
- (2) The Registrar of the court below shall also cause to be served on all parties mentioned in the notice of appeal who have filed an address for service a notice that the record has been forwarded to the Registrar of the Court who shall in due course enter the appeal in the cause list.

Civil Form 18.

- 13.—(1) A respondent who, not having appealed from the decision of the court below, desires to contend on the appeal that the decision of that court should be varied, either in any event or in the event of the appeal being allowed in whole or in part, must give notice to that effect, specifying the grounds of that contention and the precise form of the order which he proposes to ask the Court to make, or to make in that event, as the case may be.
- Respondent's notice of contention that judgment should be varied or affirmed on other grounds. Civil Forms 19 and 20.
- (2) A respondent who desires to contend on the appeal that the decision of the court below should be affirmed on grounds other than those relied upon by that court must give notice to that effect specifying the grounds of that contention.
- (3) Except with the leave of the Court, a respondent shall not be entitled on the hearing of the appeal to contend that the decision of the court below should be varied upon grounds not specified in a notice given under this rule, to apply for any relief not so specified or to support the decision of the court below upon any grounds not relied upon by that court or specified in such a notice.

ORDER 7.

- (4) Any notice given by a respondent under this rule (in this Order referred to as a "respondent's notice") must be served on the appellant, and on all parties to the proceedings in the court below who are directly affected by the contentions of the respondent, and must be served—
 - (a) in the case of an appeal against an interlocutory order, within 15 days, and
 - (b) in any other case, within one month, after the service of the notice of appeal on the respondent.
- (5) A party by whom a respondent's notice is given shall file with the Registrar of the court below ten copies of such notice of which one shall be included in the record, and the other copies provided for the use of the Judges.
- (6) Omission to give such notice shall not diminish any powers of the Court but may in the discretion of the Court be a ground for postponement or adjournment of the appeal upon such terms as to costs or otherwise as may be just.

Notice of preliminary objection to be filed. Civil Form 21.

- 14.—(1) A respondent intending to rely upon a preliminary objection to the hearing of the appeal shall give the appellant three clear days notice thereof before the hearing, setting out the grounds of objection, and shall file such notice together with ten copies thereof with the Registrar within the same time.
- (2) No objection shall be taken to the hearing of an appeal on the ground that the amounts fixed by the Registrar of the court below under Rule 7 (1) of this Order were incorrectly assessed.
- (3) If the respondent fails to comply with this rule the Court may refuse to entertain the objection or may adjourn the hearing thereof at the cost of the respondent or may make such other order as it thinks fit.

Amendment of notice of appeal or respondent's notice. 15. A notice of appeal or respondent's notice may be amended by or with the leave of the Court, at any time.

Directions of the Court as to service of notice of appeal or respondent's notice.

16.—(1) The Court may in any case direct that the notice of appeal be served on any party to the proceedings in the court below on whom it has not been served, or on any person not party to those proceedings.

(2) In any case in which the Court directs that the notice of appeal shall be served on any party or person, the Court may also direct that any respondent's notice shall be served on him.

ORDER 7.

- (3) The Court may in any case where it gives a direction under this rule—
 - (a) postpone or adjourn the hearing of the appeal for such period and on such terms as may be just, and
 - (b) give such judgment and make such order on the appeal as might have been given or made if the persons served in pursuance of the direction had originally been parties.
- 17.—(1) An appellant may at any time before the appeal is called on for hearing serve on the parties to the appeal and file with the Registrar a notice to the effect that he does not intend further to prosecute the appeal.

Withdrawal of appeal. Civil Form 22. Civil Form 23.

- (2) If all parties to the appeal consent to the withdrawal of the appeal without order of the Court, the appellant may file in the Registry the document or documents signifying such consent and signed by the parties or by their legal representatives and the appeal shall thereupon be deemed to have been withdrawn and shall be struck out of the list of appeals by the Registrar. In such event any sum lodged in Court as security for the costs of the appeal shall be paid out to the appellant.
 - (3) The withdrawal of an appeal with the consent of the parties under paragraph (2) of this Rule shall be a bar to further proceedings on any application made by the respondent under Rule 13 of this Order.
 - (4) If all the parties do not consent to the withdrawal of the appeal as aforesaid, the appeal shall remain on the list, and shall come on for the hearing of any issue as to costs or otherwise remaining outstanding between the parties, including any application made by the respondent under Rule 13 of this Order, and for the making of an order as to the disposal of any sum lodged in Court as security for the costs of appeal.
 - (5) An appeal which has been withdrawn under this Rule, whether with or without an order of the Court, shall be deemed to have been dismissed.

ORDER 7. Appeal by respondent after appellant's appeal is withdrawn.

18. Where an appeal is withdrawn under the preceding rule any respondent who has not given a notice under Rule 13 of this Order may give notice of appeal and proceed therewith in the manner prescribed by the foregoing rules, and in such case the times limited for giving notice of appeal, for depositing the sum estimated to cover the cost of the record and for furnishing the security for costs may, on application to the Court, be extended so far as is reasonably necessary in all the circumstances of the case.

Noncompliance with conditions of appeal. Civil Form 24.

- requirements of Rules 9 and 10 of this Order, the Registrar of the court below shall certify such fact to the Court, which shall thereupon order that the appeal be dismissed either with or without costs, and shall cause the appellant and the respondent to be notified of the terms on its order.
- (2) Where an appeal has been dismissed under paragraph (1) of this Rule, a respondent who has given notice under Rule 13 of this Order may give notice of appeal and the provisions of Rule 18 of this Order shall apply as if the appeal were brought under that Rule.
- (3) If the respondent alleges that the appellant has failed to comply with a part of the requirements of Rules 2, 9 or 10 of this Order, the Court, if satisfied that the appellant has so failed, may dismiss the appeal for want of due prosecution or make such other order as the justice of the case may require.
- (4) An appellant whose appeal has been dismissed under this rule may apply by notice of motion that his appeal be restored. Any such application may be made to the Court and the Court may in its discretion for good and sufficent cause order that such appeal be restored upon such terms as it may think fit.

Exhibits.

- 20.—(1) Subject as hereinafter provided, each party shall, immediately after an appeal becomes pending before the Court, deliver to the court below all documents (being exhibits in the case or which were tendered as exhibits and rejected) which are in his custody or were produced or put in by him at the trial.
- (2) Subject as hereinafter provided, each party to an appeal shall be prepared to produce at the hearing of the appeal all exhibits, other than documents, which are in his custody or were produced or put in by him at the trial.

(3) In case any party finds it difficult to comply with the previous provisions of this rule owing to the nature of documents or other exhibit or owing to its being in possession of a third party or for any other reason, he may apply to the Registrar of the court for directions.

ORDER 7.

- (4) The Registrar of the court below may, either of his own motion or upon application, give any directions he sees fit, whether dispensing with the provisions of this rule or modifying its application in any way or for securing compliance with it.
- (5) All original documents delivered to the court below under this rule shall remain in the custody of the court below until the record of appeal has been prepared, and shall then be forwarded with the record to the Registrar and shall remain in the custody of the Court until the determination of the appeal:

Provided that the Court or Registrar may allow the return of any document to any party pending the hearing of the appeal and subject to such conditions as it or he may impose.

21. After an appeal has been entered and until it has been finally disposed of, the Court shall be seised of the whole of the proceedings as between the parties thereto, and except as may be otherwise provided in this Order, every application therein shall be made to the Court and not to the court below, but any application may be filed in the court below for transmission to the Court.

Control of proceedings during pendency of appeal.

22. At any time before hearing of the appeal any party to the appeal may file a declaration in writing that he does not wish to be present in person or by a legal representative on the hearing of the appeal. He shall serve a copy of such declaration upon every other party who has filed an address for service and thereupon the appeal shall be dealt with as if the party had appeared.

Declaration by party not appearing.

Civil Form 25,

23.—(1) Subject to the provisions of Order 9 Rule 6 (6) of these Rules, if the appellant fails to appear when his appeal is called on for hearing and has not taken action under Rule 22 of this Order, the appeal may be dismissed with or without costs.

Nonappearance of appellant. ORDER 7.

(2) When an appeal has been dismissed owing to the non-appearance of the appellant the Court may, if it thinks fit, and on such terms as to costs or otherwise as it may deem just, direct the appeal to be re-entered for hearing.

Nonappearance of respondent. 24. If the respondent fails to appear when the appeal is called on for hearing and has not taken action under Rule 22 of this Order, the Court may proceed to hear the appeal ex parte.

Application to set aside ex parte judgment.

- 25.—(1) Where an appeal has been heard ex parte under Rule 24 and any judgment has been given therein adverse to the respondent, he may apply to the Court to set aside such judgment and to re-hear the appeal.
- (2) No application to set aside and re-hear under this rule shall be made after the expiration of twenty-one days from the date of the judgment sought to be set aside:

Provided that a respondent who has failed within the period of twenty-one days to make application under this rule may nevertheless at any time within a further period of three months thereafter apply to the Court on notice to the appellant to set aside such judgment, and the Court if satisfied that good and sufficient cause has been shown for the application being out of time, may grant the application and make such order in relation thereto or as to costs as it may deem fit in the circumstances.

(3) Any such application shall be by motion accompanied by an affidavit setting forth the reasons and grounds for the application and the Court may thereupon in its discretion set aside the judgment and order that the appeal be re-heard at such time and upon such conditions as to costs or otherwise as it may think fit.

General powers of the Court. 26.—(1) In relation to an appeal the Court shall have all the powers and duties as to amendment and otherwise of the High Court including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing words, the powers of the High Court to refer any question or issue of fact arising on the appeal for trial before, or inquiry and report by, an official or special referee.

In relation to a reference made to an official or special referee, anything which can be required or authorised to be done by, to or before the High Court shall be done, to or before the Court.

(2) A single judge may sit in Chambers.

ORDER 7

- (3) The Court shall have power to receive further evidence on questions of fact, either by oral examination in court, by affidavit, or by deposition taken before an examiner or commissioner as the Court may direct, but, in the case of an appeal from a judgment after trial or hearing of any cause or matter on the merits, no such further evidence (other than evidence as to matters which have occurred after the date of the trial or hearing) shall be admitted except on special grounds.
 - (4) The Court shall have power to draw inferences of fact and to give any judgment and make any order which ought to have been given or made, and to make such further or other order as the case may require, including any order as to costs.
 - (5) The powers of the Court under the foregoing provisions of this rule may be exercised notwithstanding that no notice of appeal or respondent's notice has been given in respect of any particular part of the decision of the court below or by any particular party to the proceedings in that court, or that any ground for allowing the appeal or for affirming or varying the decision of that court is not specified in such a notice; and the Court may make any order, on such terms as the Court thinks just, to ensure the determination on the merits of the real question in controversy between the parties.
 - (6) The Court may, in special circumstances, order that such security shall be given for the costs of an appeal as may be just.
 - (7) The powers of the Court in respect of an appeal shall not be restricted by reason of any interlocutory order from which there has been no appeal.
 - (8) The Court shall have power to make orders by way of injunctions or the appointment of a receiver or manager and such other necessary orders for the protection of property or person pending the determination of an appeal to it even though no application for such an order was made in the court below.
 - (9) Documents impounded by order of the Court shall not be delivered out of the custody of the Court except in compliance with an order of the Court:

ORDER 7.

Provided that where the Attorney-General of the Federation or of a State or the Director of Public Prosecutions of the Federation or of a State makes a written request in that behalf, documents so impounded shall be delivered into his custody.

(10) Documents impounded by order of the Court, while in the custody of the Court, shall not be inspected except by a person authorised to do so by an order of the Court.

Powers of the Court as to new trial.

- 27.—(1) On the hearing of any appeal the Court may, if it thinks fit, make any such order as could be made in pursuance of an application for a new trial or to set aside a verdict, finding or judgment of the court below.
- (2) The Court shall not be bound to order a new trial on the ground of misdirection, or of the improper admission or rejection of evidence, unless in the opinion of the Court some substantial wrong or miscarriage of justice has been thereby occasioned.
- (3) A new trial may be ordered on any question without interferring with the finding or decision on any other question; and if it appears to the Court that any such wrong or miscarriage of justice as is mentioned in paragraph (2) affects part only of the matter in controversy, or one or some only of the parties, the Court may order a new trial as to that part only, or as to that party or those parties only, and give final judgment as to the remainder.
- (4) In any case where the Court has power to order a new trial on the ground that damages awarded by the court below are excessive or inadequate, the Court may, in lieu of ordering a new trial—
 - (a) substitute for the sum awarded by the court below such sum as appears to the Court to be proper;
 - (b) reduce or increase the sum awarded by the court below by such amount as appears to the Court to be proper in respect of any distinct head of damages erroneously included in or excluded from the sum so awarded;

but except as aforesaid the Court shall not have power to reduce or increase the damages awarded by the court below.

(5) A new trial shall not be ordered by reason of the ruling of any judge of the court below that a document is sufficiently stamped or does not require to be stamped.

28.—(1) The judgment of the Court shall be pronounced in open Court, either on the hearing of the appeal or at any subsequent time of which notice shall be given by the Registrar to the parties to the appeal.

Order 7.
Judgment.

(2) Whenever a reserved judgment is to be given and the counsel concerned are duly notified in that behalf, the presence of such counsel or of their juniors is required in Court when judgment is being delivered. Failure to observe this will be regarded as an act of disrespect to the Court.

(3) A certified copy of the judgment shall be sent by the Registrar to the court below.

29.—(1) Every judgment of the Court shall be embodied

(2) A sealed or certified copy of the order shall be sent by the Registrar to the court below.

in an order.

- (3) Interlocutory orders shall be prepared in like manner.
- 30. The Court shall not review any judgment once given and delivered by it save to correct any clerical mistake or some error arising from any accidental slip or omission, or to vary the judgment or order so as to give effect to its meaning or intention. A judgment or order shall not be varied when it correctly represents what the Court decided nor shall the operative and substantive part of it be varied and a different form substituted.

Review of judgment.

Order.

31. Any judgment given by the Court may be enforced by the Court or by the court below or by any other court which has been seised of the matter, as the Court may direct.

Enforcement of Judgments.

32. When the Court directs any judgment to be enforced by another court, a certificate under the seal of the Court and the hand of the presiding Judge setting forth the judgment shall be transmitted by the Registrar to such other court, and the latter shall enforce such judgment in terms of the certificate.

Execution of judgment by court below. Civil Form 26.

33. Where the costs of an appeal are allowed they may either be fixed by the Court at the time when the judgment is given or may be ordered to be taxed.

Costs,

34.—(1) Save as hereinafter provided, the fees prescribed in the Third Schedule hereto shall be charged in respect of the matters to which they are respectively assigned and shall be paid to the Registrar of the court below or of the Court as the case may be.

Fees.

ORDER 7.

(2) No fee shall be payable in respect of any matter where such fee would be payable by the Government of the Federation or of a State, or any Government Department:

Provided that when any person is ordered to pay the costs of the Government of the Federation or of a State or of any Government Department in any case, all fees which would have been payable but for the provisions of this paragraph shall be taken as having been paid and shall be recoverable from such person.

(3) The court below or the Court may, on account of the poverty of any party (although such party may not have been formally permitted to proceed as a poor person under Rule 35 of this Order) or for other sufficient reason, dispense, if it sees fit, with payment of any fees, if the circumstances of the case require.

Provided that if such party succeeds in any appeal which results in an order for payment to him of any costs, the Court may order that such fees shall be a first charge on any moneys recovered or to be recovered under such order.

Proceedings by poor persons.

- 35.—(1) Any party may apply to the Court for leave to prosecute or defend an appeal as a poor person. Such application shall be by notice of motion, supported by affidavit, and shall be served on the other parties to the proceedings. No fee shall be payable on filing any such application.
- (2) No party shall be permitted to proceed as a poor person unless he satisfies the Court that he has a reasonable probability of success.
- (3) A person permitted to proceed as a poor person shall not be liable to pay any of the Court fees prescribed by these Rules nor shall he be required to make the deposit or to give the security prescribed by Rules 9 and 10 of this Order.
- (4) The Court may for good cause shown review, rescind or vary an order permitting any person to proceed as a poor person.

Costs in proceedings by poor persons.

- 36.—(1) Leave to proceed as a poor person shall not exempt such person from liability to an order for costs in favour of his opponent.
- (2) If a poor person is not awarded costs in the proceedings, no fees shall be taken from him by a legal representative assigned to him.

(3) If a poor person is awarded costs against his opponent he shall be entitled to include and receive in such costs the fees of any legal representative assigned to him and all other fees and costs remitted by his admission to proceed as a poor person.

ORDER 7.

ORDER 8.

ORDER 8

CRIMINAL APPEALS

r. This order shall apply to appeals to the Court from any court or tribunal acting either in its original or in its appellate jurisdiction in criminal cases, other than a court-martial, and to matters related thereto.

Appeals to which Order applies.

2. Except where otherwise provided in these Rules any application to the Court may be made by the appellant or respondent or by a legal representative on his behalf orally or in writing, but in regard to such applications if the appellant is unrepresented and in custody and is not entitled or has not obtained leave to be present before the Court, he shall make any such application by forwarding the same in writing to the Registrar who shall take the appropriate steps to obtain the decision of the Court thereon.

Applications not specially provided for.

3.—(1) A person desiring to appeal to the Court against any judgment, sentence or order of the court below, whether in the exercise of its original or of its appellate jurisdiction, shall commence his appeal by sending to the Registrar of the court below a notice of appeal or notice of ppalication for leave to appeal or notice of application for extension of time within which such notice shall be given, as the case may be, in the form of such notices respectively set forth as Forms 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 or 7 in the Second Schedule to these Rules.

Appellant
to file
notice of
appeal or
notice of
application
for leave to
appeal or
notice of
application
for
extension
of time.

(2) A person sending any notice or notices under this Rule shall answer the questions and comply with the requirements set forth thereon.

4.—(1) Every notice of appeal or notice of application for leave to appeal or notice of application for extension of time within which such notice shall be given shall be signed by the appellant himself, except under the provision of paragraphs (4) and (5) of this Rule.

Notices of Appeal, etc.; who should sign. Order 8.

Any other notice required or authorised to be given shall be in writing and signed by the person giving the same or by his legal representative. All notices required or authorised to be given shall be addressed to the Registrar of the court below to be forwarded by him to the Registrar.

How notices, etc. may be given or sent. (2) Any notice or other document which is required or authorised to be given or sent shall be deemed to be duly given or sent if forwarded by registered post addressed to the person to whom such notice or other document is so required or authorised to be given or sent.

Where appellant unable to write.

(3) Where an appellant or any other person authorised or required to give or send any notice of appeal or notice of any application is unable to write, he may affix his mark thereto in the presence of a witness who shall attest the same, and thereupon such notice shall be deemed to be duly signed by such appellant.

Where question of sanity involved.

(4) Where, on the trial of a person entitled to appeal it has been contended that he was not responsible according to law for his actions on the ground that he was insane at the time the act was done or the omission made by him, or that at the time of the trial he was of unsound mind and consequently incapable of making his defence, any notice required to be given and signed by the appellant himself may be given and signed by his legal representative.

Notice, etc. on behalf of corporations.

(5) In the case of a body corporate where any notice or other document is required to be signed by the appellant himself, it shall be sufficient compliance therewith if such notice or other document is signed by the secretary, clerk, manager or legal representative of such body corporate.

Application for extension of time. Criminal Form 7. 5. An application to the Court for an extension of time within which notices may be given shall be in Form 7 in the Second Schedule to these Rules. Every person making an application for such extension of time shall send to the Registrar of the court below, together with the proper form of such application, a form duly filled up, of notice of appeal, or of notice of application for leave to appeal, appropriate to the ground or grounds upon which he desires to question his conviction or sentence, as the case may be.

Notice of application for leave to appeal.

of application for leave to appeal duly sent and in the form provided under these Rules, given an appellant leave to appeal,

it shall not be necessary for such appellant to give any notice of appeal but the notice of application for leave to appeal shall in such case be deemed to be a notice of appeal.

ORDER 8.

(2) Where an application for leave to appeal has been made to the court below, the Registrar of that court shall send to the Registrar of the Court notification of the result of the application in Form 6 in the Second Schedule to these Rules together with the original of the application for leave to appeal and the case shall thereafter be dealt with as if leave to appeal had been granted by the Court.

Criminal form 6.

7.—(I) Where a single Judge deals with any preliminary application, the Registrar shall inform the applicant on Form 8 in the Second Schedule hereto of the result of his application. In the event of such judge refusing the application, the Registrar, on notifying such refusal to the applicant, shall forward to him Form 9 in the said Schedule, which Form the applicant shall complete forthwith and return to the Registrar. If the applicant does not desire to have his said application determined by the Court or does not within thirty days of being notified of such refusal return Form 9 duly completed by him, the refusal of his application shall be final.

Dealing
with
applications
for leave
to appeal
and other
preliminary
applications.
Criminal
Forms 8
and 9.

- (2) The answers to the questions on Forms 1, 2, 3 and 4 shall be deemed to be applications to the Court in such matters.
- (3) For the purpose of constituting the Court the Judge who has refused any such application may sit as a member of the Court and take part in determining such application.
- (4) A Judge hearing a preliminary application may sit and act wherever convenient.

8.—(1) When—

(a) the Registrar of the court below has received a notice of appeal or a notice of application to the Court for leave to appeal or for extension of the time within which such notice shall be given, or

Forwarding of proceedings of court below to Registrar.

(b) the court below has granted leave to appeal, the Registrar of the court below shall prepare the record of appeal in the manner hereinafter prescribed and forward to the Registrar ten copies thereof. He shall also forward the original exhibits in the case as far as practicable and any original depositions, information, inquisition, plea, or other ORDER 8.

documents usually kept by him, or forming part of the record of the court below, together with the originals of any recongnisances entered into or any other documents filed in connection with the appeal or application.

(2) Subject to the provisions of Rule 9 of this Order, the Registrar of the court below shall forward to the appellant and to the Director of Public Prosecutions of the State from which the appeal emanates a copy each of the record:

Provided that if the appellant is not in custody a copy of the record shall only be supplied to him on request.

(3) The Court or Registrar may allow the return of any document to any party pending the hearing of the appeal and subject to such conditions as it or he may impose.

9.—(1) The fees set out in the Third Schedule shall be taken and paid upon every appeal under this Order.

- (2) The Court or the court below may waive in whole or in part the payment of any fees or the making of any deposit.
 - (3) This rule shall not apply to appeals in capital cases or where an appellant is granted legal aid.

_

Fees.

fees in capital cases or where appellant is granted legal aid.

Waiver of

Record in Criminal Appeals from court below in its original jurisdiction.

- ro.—(1) The Record of Appeal in appeals or applications relating to appeals from the court below acting in its original jurisdiction in criminal cases shall contain legible typed or printed copies of the following items arranged in this order:—
 - (a) the index;
 - (b) the charge or information;
 - (c) the judge's notes of the evidence and minutes of the proceedings provided that if a shorthand note of the hearing has been taken, a copy of the transcript thereof may be included, either in addition to or substitution of the judge's notes, as he may direct;
 - (d) the judgment or any additional ground or explanation thereof;
 - (e) the proceedings on or after sentence in so far as not included in the notes of the hearing or minutes of proceedings;

(f) all documentary exhibits put in at the trial including depositions read in consequence of the absence of a witness:

ORDER 8.

Provided that in the case of books of accounts or other documents of great length, extracts of the relevant portions thereof only shall be included;

- (g) the notice of appeal or notice of application for leave to appeal, or notice of application for extension of time in which such notice shall be given.
- (2) It shall not be necessary for the Record of Appeal to contain copies of any recognisances entered into or documents filed in connection with the appeal or application other than those set out in paragraph (1) of this rule unless the Court or a judge of the court below shall otherwise direct.
- relating to appeals from the court below acting in its appellate jurisdiction in criminal matters shall contain legible, typed or printed copies of the following items arranged in this order:—

Appeals in criminal matters from the court below in its appellate jurisdiction.

- (a) the index which shall include the particulars of the record of proceedings from the lower court;
- (b) the record of proceedings from the lower court as submitted to the court below;
- (c) the notice of appeal and all other relevant documents filed in connection with the appeal in the court below;
- (d) the notes of the judge or judges on the hearing of the appeal and minutes of the proceedings;
 - (e) the judgment of the court below;
- (f) the notice of appeal to the Court or notice of application for leave to appeal to the Court, or notice of application to the Court for extension of time in which such notice shall be given;
- (g) where leave to appeal has been granted by the court below, a copy of the order granting leave.
- (2) It shall not be necessary for the record of appeal to contain copies of any recognisances entered into for the purposes of the appeal to the court below or of the appeal or application to the Court, unless the Court or a Judge of the court below shall otherwise direct.

ORDER 8.

(3) In this rule "lower court" includes the court of trial and any court, other than the court below which may have heard the matter on appeal.

Report of Judge of Court of Trial.

Court directs him so to do, request the trial judge to furnish him with a report in writing giving his opinion upon the case generally or upon any point arising upon the case of the appellant, and the trial judge shall furnish the same to the Registrar.

(2) The report of the judge shall be made to the Court and, the Registrar shall on request, furnish a copy thereof to the appellant and respondent.

Furnishing Judge of Court of Trial with

materials

for report.

13. When the Registrar requests the trial judge to furnish a report under these Rules, he shall send to such a judge a copy of the notice of appeal or notice of application for leave to appeal or any other document or information which he shall consider material, or which the Court at any time shall direct him to send or with which such judge may request

to be furnished by the Registrar to enable such judge to deal in his report with the appellant's case generally or with

any point arising thereon.

Bail.

14.—(1) Where the Court or the court below admits an appellant to bail pending the determination of his appeal on an application by him duly made, such Court shall specify the amounts in which the appellant and his surety or sureties (unless such Court directs that no surety is required) shall be bound by recognisance, and shall direct, if it thinks fit so to do, before whom the recognisances of the appellant and his surety or sureties (if any) may be taken.

(2) In the event of such Court not making any special order or giving any special directions under this Rule, the recognisances of the appellant and of his surety or sureties (if any) may be taken before the Registrar.

(3) The recognisances provided for in this Rule shall be in Forms 10 and 11 in the Second Schedule to these Rules.

- (4) The Registrar of the court below shall forward the recognisances of the appellant and his surety or sureties to the Registrar.
- (5) An appellant who has been admitted to bail shall be personally present at each and every hearing of his appeal and at the final determination thereof. The Court may, in the

Forms 10

event of such appellant not being present at any hearing of his appeal, if it thinks right so to do, decline to consider the appeal, and may proceed summarily to dismiss the same and may issue a warrant for the apprehension of the appellant in Form 12 in the Second Schedule of these Rules;

ORDER 8.

Form 12.

Provided that the Court may consider the appeal in his absence, or make such other order as it thinks fit.

- (6) When an appellant is present before the Court, the Court may, on an application made by any person or, if it thinks right so to do, without any application, make an order admitting the appellant to bail, or revoke or vary any such order previously made, or enlarge from time to time the recognisances of the appellant or of his sureties or substitute any other surety for a surety previously bound as it thinks right.
- (7) At any time after an appellant has been released on bail, the Court or where the appellant was released on bail by the court below that court may, if satisfied that it is in the interest of justice so to do, revoke the order admitting to bail, and issue a warrant in Form 12 in the Second Schedule of these Rules.

Form 12.

15.—(1) Where a person has, on his conviction, been sentenced to payment of a fine, and in default of payment to imprisonment, and such person remains in custody in default of payment of the fine, he shall be deemed, for purposes of appeal, to be a person sentenced to imprisonment.

Fines.

- (2) An appellant who has been sentenced to the payment of a fine, and has paid the same or part thereof in accordance with such sentence, shall, in the event of his appeal being successful, be entitled, subject to any order of the Court, to the return of the sum or any part thereof so paid by him.
- against his conviction, an order of restitution of any property to any person has been made by a judge of the court, the person in whose favour or against whom the order of restitution has been made, and, with the leave of the Court, any other person, shall, on the final hearing by the Court of an appeal against his conviction on which such order of restitution was made, be entitled to be heard by the Court before any order annulling or varying such order of restitution is made.

Varying order of restitution of property.

ORDER 8.
Nonsuspension
of order
of restitution.

17. Where the judge of the court below is of opinion that the title to any property the subject of an order of restitution made on a conviction of a person before him is not in dispute, he, if he shall be of opinion that such property or a sample or portion or facsimile representation thereof is reasonably necessary to be produced for use at the hearing of any appeal, shall give such direction to or impose such terms upon the person in whose favour the order of restitution is made, as he shall think right in order to secure the production of such sample, portion or facsimile representation for use at the hearing of any such appeal.

Restrictions on issue of certificate of conviction.

18. The Registrar of the court below shall not issue, under any law authorising him so to do, a certificate of conviction of any person convicted in the court below if notice of appeal or notice of application for leave to appeal is given, until the determination or abandonment thereof.

Abandonment of appeal. 19.—(1) An appellant at any time after he has duly served notice of appeal or of application for leave to appeal, or of application for extension of time within which such notice shall be given, may abandon his appeal by giving notice of abandonment thereof in Form 13 in the Second Schedule to the Registrar, and upon such notice being given the appeal shall be deemed to have been dismissed by the Court.

Form 13.

(2) Upon receipt of a notice of abandonment duly completed and signed or marked by the appellant or the party authorised to sign notices under Rule 4 of this Order, the Registrar shall give notices thereof in Form 14 in the Second Schedule to the respondent, the Prison authority and the Registrar of the court below, and in the case of an appeal against a conviction involving a sentence of death, shall in like manner give notice to the Permanent Secretary to the appropriate Federal or State Ministry, for the information of the authority responsible for advising the Head of the Federal Military Government or Governor (as the case may be) on the exercise of the prerogative of mercy, and the Registrar shall also return to the Registrar of the court below any original documents and exhibits received from him.

Form 14.

20. An appellant (other than one convicted of an offence involving sentence of death) who has abandoned his appeal may, in special cases, with the leave of the Court, withdraw his notice of abandonment by duly completing Form 15 in the Second Schedule together with Form 7 (Notice of Application for extension of time within which to appeal) and sending them to the Registrar.

Notice of abandonment of appeal may be withdrawn. Criminal Form 15.

- 21.—(1) Where the Court has ordered any witness to attend and be examined before the Court an order in Form 16 in the Second Schedule hereto shall be served upon such witness specifying the time and place at which to attend for such purpose.
- (2) Such order may be made on the application at any time of the appellant or respondent, but if the appellant is in custody and not legally represented the application shall be made by him in Form 17 in the Second Schedule.
- (3) Where the Court orders the examination of any witness to be conducted otherwise than before the Court itself, such order shall specify the person appointed as examiner to take and the place of taking such examination and the witness or witnesses to be examined thereat.
- (4) The Registrar shall furnish to the person appointed to take such examination any documents or exhibits and any other material relating to the said appeal as and when requested to do so. Such documents and exhibits and other material shall after examination has been concluded be returned by the examier, together with any deposition taken by him under this Rule to the Registrar.
- (5) When the examiner has appointed the day and time for the examination he shall request the Registrar to give notice thereof to the appellant and the respondent and their legal representatives, if any, and when the appellant is in prison, to the Prison authority. The Registrar shall cause to be served on every witness to be examined a notice in Form 18 in the Second Schedule.
- (6) Every witness examined before an examiner under this Rule shall give his evidence upon oath or affirmation to be administered by such examiner, except where any such witness if giving evidence as a witness at a trial or information need not be sworn.
- (7) The examination of every such witness shall be taken in the form of a deposition and unless otherwise ordered shall be taken in private. The Caption in Form 19 in the Second Schedule shall be attached to any such deposition.
- (8) Where any witness shall receive an order or notice to attend before the Court or an examiner, the Registrar may, if it appears to him necessary so to do, pay to such witness a reasonable sum for his expenses.

ORDER 8.
Attendance
of witness
before
the Court,
Criminal
Form 16.

Application to Court to hear witnesses. Criminal Form 17.

Order appointing examiner.

Furnishing examiner with exhibits, etc. for examination.

Notification \(\square\) of date of examination.

Form 18.

Evidence to be taken on Oath.

Deposition of witness how to take. Criminal Form 19.

Expenses of witnesses before examiner.

ORDER 8. Presence of parties at examination witnesses.

(9) The appellant and respondent, or their legal representatives, shall, unless the Court otherwise directs, be entitled to be present at and take part in any examination of any witness to which this Rule relates.

Proceedings reference.

22. When an order of reference is made by the Court to a special commissioner, the question to be referred, and the person to whom as special commissioner the same shall be referred, shall be specified in such order. The Court may in such order or by giving directions as and when they from time to time shall think right, specify whether the appellant or respondent or any person on their behalf may be present at any examination or investigation or at any stage thereof as may be ordered, and specify any and what powers of the Court may be delegated to such special commissioner, and may require him from time to time to make interim reports to the Court upon the question referred to him, and may, if the appellant is in custody, give leave to him to be present at any stage of such examination or investigation and give the necessary directions to the Prison authority accordingly, and may give directions to the Registrar that copies of any report made by such special commissioner shall be furnished to the appellant and respondent.

Notification of final determination of appeals.

23.—(1) On the final determination of any appeal or of any application to the Court, the Registrar shall give to the appellant, if he be in custody and has not been present at such final determination, and to the respondent and the Prison authority, notice of such determination in Forms 20, 21, 22 or 23 in the Second Schedule, as the case may be.

Notification of appeal in capital cases.

(2) In any case of an appeal in relation to a conviction involving sentence of death, the Registrar shall on receiving notice of appeal, send copies thereof to the Permanent Secretary to the appropriate Federal or State Ministry, for the information of the authority responsible for advising the Head of the Federal Military Government or the Governor (as the case may be) on the exercise of the prerogative of mercy, to the respondent and to the Prison authority.

Notification of result of appeal.

24.—(1) The Registrar at the final determination of an appeal shall notify in such manner as he thinks most convenient to the Registrar of the court below the decision of the Court

in relation thereto, and also any orders or directions made or given by the Court in relation to such appeal or any matter connected therewith.

- (2) The Registrar of the court below shall on receiving the notification referred to in this Rule, enter the particulars thereof on the records of such court.
- 25. Upon the final determination of an appeal for the purposes of which the Registrar has obtained from the Registrar of the court below any original depositions, exhibits, information, inquisition, plea or other documents usually kept by the said Registrar, or forming part of the record of the court below, the Registrar shall, where practicable, cause the same to be returned to the Registrar of the court below.

Return of original depositions,

26. Any order given or made by the Court may be enforced by the Court or by the court below as may be most expedient.

Enforcement of orders.

Order 9

ORDER 9.

Filing of Briefs of Argument

- 1.—(1) This Order shall apply to all matters whether civil or criminal in respect of which jurisdiction is conferred upon the Court.
- (2) An application for leave to appeal, apart from the affidavit in support, shall contain the following:—
- Application for leave to appeal.
- (a) A reference to the judgment delivered in the court below and in respect of which leave to appeal is sought. A certified copy of the judgment shall be attached as provided for in paragraph (3) of this rule;
- (b) a statement of the questions which the applicant would like the Court to consider, expressed in the terms and circumstances of the case but without unnecessary detail. The statement will be deemed to include every subsidiary question comprised therein. Only the questions set forth in the application or comprised therein will be considered by the Court;

ORDER 9.

- (c) the Constitutional provisions, enactments, or subsidiary legislation, if any, which are relevant to the application;
- (d) a concise statement of the case containing the facts material to the consideration of the questions presented; and
- (e) a direct and concise argument amplifying the reasons relied upon.
- (3) There shall be attached to the application a certified copy of the judgment complained of.
- (4) All arguments in support of the application shall be set out in the application as provided for in paragraph 2 (e) of this rule.
- (5) Failure on the part of an applicant for leave to present with accuracy, brevity, and precision whatever is essential to the clear and adequate understanding of the questions which require consideration shall be a sufficient reason for refusing the application.
- (6) An application for leave to appeal may be considered and refused by the Court on the written argument submitted by the applicant in support. The application may also be granted or refused after hearing oral argument.
- (7) The Court, in the interest of justice, may adjourn the application so as to enable the party or parties affected to file their own Brief in reply.

Preparation of Record of Appeal. 2. Where leave has been granted, the record of appeal, whether civil or criminal, shall be compiled in accordance with the appropriate provisions of these Rules.

Preparation and filing of Briefs of Argument. 3.—(1) The appellant shall within eight weeks of the receipt of the Record of Appeal referred to in Order 7 rule 8 and Order 8 rules 10 and 11 respectively file in the Court and serve on the respondent a written Brief being a succinct statement of his argument in the appeal. The Brief, which may be settled by counsel, shall contain what are, in the appellant's view, the issues arising in the appeal. If the appellant is abandoning any point taken in the court below, this should be so stated in the Brief. Equally, if he intends to apply in the course of the hearing for leave to introduce a new point not taken in the court below, this should be indicated in his Brief.

(2) The respondent shall file in the Court and serve on the appellant his own Brief within six weeks after service on him of the Brief of the appellant.

ORDER 9.

(3) The appellant may also file in the Court and serve on the respondent a Reply Brief within twenty-one days after service of the Brief of the respondent on him but, except for good and sufficient cause shown, a Reply Brief shall be filed and served at least three days before the date set down for the hearing of the appeal.

Reply Bries.

- (4) If the parties intend to invite the Court to depart from one of its own decisions, this shall be clearly stated in a separate paragraph of the Brief, to which special attention shall be drawn. The intention shall also be restated as one of the reasons.
- (5) Except to such extent as may be necessary to the development of the argument, Briefs need not set out or summarize the judgments of the lower courts, nor set out statutory provisions, nor contain an account of the proceedings below or of the facts of the case.
 - (6) (a) Ten copies of each Brief must be filed in the Court.
- (b) All Briefs shall be concluded with a numbered summary of the reasons upon which the argument is founded.
- (c) Wherever possible or necessary, the reasons should also be supported by particulars of the titles, dates, and pages of cases reported in the Law Reports or elsewhere including the summary of the decisions in such cases, which the parties propose to rely upon. If necessary, reference should also be made to relevant statutory provisions, including the provisions of statutory instruments.
- (d) The parties shall assume that Briefs will be read and considered in conjunction with the documents admitted in evidence as exhibits during the proceedings in the court below, and wherever necessary, reference should also be made to all relevant documents or exhibits on which they propose to rely in the argument.
- 4.—(1) For the purpose of preparing a Brief, all the appellants, if they are more than one, shall file a joint Brief and all the respondents shall similarly file a joint Brief unless it can be shown that the interests of one or more of the respondents are distinct from those of the remainder. In that case, separate Briefs containing different arguments may be filed by the respondent or respondents concerned.

Separate Cases.

ORDER 9.

(2) Parties whose interests in the appeal are passive (e.g. stakeholders, trustees, executors, etc.) are not required to file a separate Brief. They should ensure that their position is explained in one of the Briefs filed.

Crossappeals.

(3) Argument in respect of a cross-appeal or in respect of a respondent's notice under rule 13 of Order 7 may be included by any party in their Brief for the original appeal without special application. Such an inclusive Brief shall clearly state that it is filed in respect of both the original appeal and cross-appeal or respondent's notice.

List of Law Reports, Text Books, etc. to be forwarded to the Registrar.

5. As early as possible before the date set down for the hearing of the appeal, and in any event, not later than one week before such date, the party who has filed a Brief or the legal practitioner representing him shall forward to the Registrar in charge of Litigation a list of the law reports, text books, and other authorities which counsel intend to cite at the hearing of the appeal.

Oral Argument.

- 6.—(1) Oral argument will be allowed at the hearing of the appeal to emphasize and clarify the written argument appearing in the Briefs already filed in Court.
- (2) The appellant shall be entitled to open and conclude the argument. But when there is a cross-appeal or a respondent's notice, the appeal and such cross-appeal or respondent's notice shall be argued together with the appeal as one case and within the time allotted for one case, and the Court may, having regard to the nature of the appeal, inform the parties which one is to open and close the argument.
- (3) Unless otherwise directed, one hour on each side will be allowed for argument. Any request for additional time shall be made to the Court in writing not later than one month after service of the appellant's Brief on the respondent. The request, a copy of which shall be served on the respondent, shall state clearly and in precise terms the reasons why the argument cannot be presented within the time limit.
- (4) Unless additional time has been granted, only one legal practitioner will be heard for each side. By the special permission of the Court, more than one legal practitioner may be heard for each side when there are several parties on the same side. The Court will look on divided arguments with disfavour.
- (5) Save with the leave of the Court, no oral argument will be heard on behalf of any party for whom no Brief has been filed.

(6) When an appeal is called and no party or any legal practitioner appearing for him appears to present oral argument, but Briefs have been filed by all the parties concerned in the appeal, the appeal will be treated as having been duly argued and will be considered as such.

ORDER 9.

(7) When an appeal is called, and it is discovered that a Brief has been filed for only one of the parties and neither of the parties concerned nor their legal practitioners appear to present oral argument, the appeal shall be regarded as having been argued on that Brief.

1

7. If an appellant fails to file his Brief within the time provided for in rule 3 above, or within the time as extended by the Court, the respondent may apply to the Court for the appeal to be dismissed for want of prosecution. If the respondent fails to file his Brief, he will not be heard in oral argument except by leave of the Court.

Consequences of failure to Briefs,

ORDER 10

ORDER 10,

Miscellaneous

Non-compliance on the part of an appellant or a respondent with these Rules or with any Rule of practice for the time being in force shall not prevent the further prosecution of the appeal if the Court considers that such non-compliance was not wilful, and that it is in the interests of justice that such non-compliance be waived. The Court may in such manner as they think right, direct the appellant or the respondent as the case may be to remedy such non-compliance, and thereupon the appeal shall proceed. The Registrar shall forthwith notify the appellant or the respondent as the case may be of any directions given by the Court under this rule where the appellant or the respondent was not present at the time when such directions were given.

Waiver of non-compliance with Rules.

FIRST SCHEDULE CIVIL FORM 1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA (STATEMENT OF CLAIM) (Order 3, Rule 1)

Between		Plaintif
	and	
***************************************	······	Defendan
The plaintiff, etc	·í	•
. , , , , ,	set out the nature of the claim)	
		•••••
* *	e	
		6 2
The plaintiff claims	(set out the relief sought)	7
	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	
*		
		£)
	day of	
		•

Attorney-General of or other Plaintiff whose address for service

Note.—An address for service must be given.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

CIVIL SUMMONS (Order 3, Rule 2)

No		Suit No
Between		PJaintij
	and	
	·····	Defendan
	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	R 11 m 12
То	••••••	
of		
You are hereby com	manded in His Ex	cellency's name to enter a
appearance to an action	at the sale officers.	••••••
proceed therein, and jud The plaintiff's claim		
* *		
	100 C	
*		
2 10 10		
DATED this		day of, 19
		Desistant of the Count

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA MEMORANDUM OF ENTRY OF APPEARANCE (Order 2, Rule 4)

No	Suit	No
Between	•	Plaintiff
* ₄ *	and	
		Defendant
Enter an appearance for	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	a	
	in this	17)
9	***	v •
DATED this	day of	
	o	
	Defendant or his lega whose address fo	
A 18 2	is	
Note.—A Memorandum of A contains an address for service.	Appearance shall not be re	eceived unless it
(B)		. ,
CI	VIL FORM 4	* *
In the Supi	REME COURT OF NIGERIA	
	OF APPEARANCE der 2, Rule 5)	
No	Suit	No
Between		Plaintiff
N 250	and	
		Defendant

TAKE NOTICE that an appearance has been entered in this action for the

To the Plaintiff or His Legal Representative

defendant.

DATED this	day of19
	Defendant or his legal representative whose address for service
	is
Note.—The plaintiff is require within fourteen days after the day of such entry.	red to take out a summons for directions ate of entry of appearance, inclusive of the
i	Fig. 12869 B
CIX	7IL FORM 5
34	EME COURT OF NIGERIA
	59 55 55 55 6
	E OF MOTION rder 2, Rule 7)
No	Suit No
	9 7 9
Between	and Appellant
	Respondent
	8 2 8 g 8 8
TAKE NOTICE that the Court w	ill be moved on
ıt	in the forenoon or
as soon thereafter as Counsel ca	n be heard on behalf of the above-named
or an order that	
DATED this	day of19
80 V	
*	
	Applicant or his legal representative

Note.—An address for service must be given.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA SUMMONS FOR DIRECTIONS (Order 3, Rule 4)

No	15	91 6	Suit N	0
Between				Plaintiff
18	and	* ×		
				Defendant
To the Defendant or H	is Legal R	EPRESENTATIVE	* *	. a
Let all parties attend				at the
Supreme Court of Nigeria	on the			
day ofin the forenoon on the hear that	ring of an ap	oplication for d	irections in	this action
*2				
*3.		day of		
This summons was taker	out by			
of				
	-	• •	60 (4)	50
* Set out directions requested	i.			. 1. 1
	-			
A 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	CIVIL	FORM 7	*	* *
In the	SUPREME (COURT OF NIGH	ERIA	*
(ORDER ON		NS FOR DIRI 3, Rule 4)	ECTIONS)	.
No	**************************************		Suit No	
Between				Plaintiff
	•	and		7.
				, Defendant

窓 佐 切				
Upon hearing				
and upon reading the affid	(6)		**	
It is ordered that				
				2 2
				•••••
***************************************			,	
And it is recorded that	the	: ••••••		•••••
refuses to admit, for the 1	purposes of this	action, the	truth of the	statement
in		**********		
		848	89 (88	
DATED this		day of.		19
3 8 4				
	# F9	Justice of	the Supreme	Court
	10 10			,
9	CIVIL FOR	M 8		
In thi	E SUPREME COUR	RT OF NIGE	RIA	
. 2	STATED C	ASE		* * *
	(Order 4, Rul	(e 1)		
No	A _{c.}	9	Suit No	•••••
Between				Plaintiff
4	and		- a	
		, ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	•••••	Defendant
	7 7 N		4	
1. The following facts say—	have been agree	d between	the parties,	that is to
*(a)	# # * * *			
(b) (c)	er e			
		- 10 AM		녆
2. The following docume say—	ients have been a	igreed between	een the parti	ies, that is
†(a)			# # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # # #	*
(b)	G 2		12 12	
(c)	¥ #			

3. The follow		
	wing questions of law arising in	these proceedings are referred
for the opinion	of the Court, that is to say-	200
‡(a)		e e e
(b)		
	~	***
(c)	(2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *
DATED this		day of19
		9

	Plai	ntiff or his legal representative
		- *
	•••••	
35	Defe	endant or his legal representative
* Set out the	agreed facts.	
T Set out the	agreed documents. questions of law on which the opin	nion of Court is required
+ Det out the	questions of the on when the oph	non or Court is required.
	CIVIL FORM	0
	CIVIL FORM	9
	IN THE SUPREME COURT	OF NIGERIA
ODICINI AMI	NO GUNDANONO BOD A DE	OF ADAMODY HIDOMENIA
ORIGINATI	NG SUMMONS FOR A DE	
and .	(Order 5, Rule 5)
S.	#1	
Between		Plaintiff
	and	<u>_</u>
		Defendant
	of,	
Let	of	
Let	of	days after the service of this
Letwithinsummons on l	of	days after the service of this
Letwithinsummons on l	of	days after the service of this
Letwithinsummons on l	nim, inclusive of the day of suctor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this
Letwithinsummons on l	nim, inclusive of the day of suctor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
within'summons on h	of of nim, inclusive of the day of successor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
within'summons on h	nim, inclusive of the day of suctor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on h to be entered f	of of nim, inclusive of the day of successor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on he to be entered for the claims to the transfer to the tra	of of nim, inclusive of the day of successor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on he to be entered for the claims to the	of of nim, inclusive of the day of successor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on he to be entered for the claims to the transfer to the tra	of of nim, inclusive of the day of successor him on this summons upon	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3)	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3)	of	days after the service of this h service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on he to be entered for the claims to the	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
withinsummons on he to be entered for the claims to the	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3) Dated this This summon	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3) Dated this This summon	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3) DATED this. This summons whose address	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of
within summons on h to be entered f with claims to †(1) (2) (3) DATED this. This summons whose address	of	days after the service of this ch service, cause an appearance the application of

^{*} State nature of interest.
† Set out questions for determination.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA REFERENCE AS TO CONSTITUTION

(Order 6, Rule 1)

Between				Plaintiff
	and	* *	E .	
				Defendant
This is an action ¹				1.75
The plaintiff alleged ²				
The defendant answered ³	E			
The detendant answered				
Secretary and the second secretary and the second secretary secret		4		
The plaintiff replied4			••••••	************
After hearing the parties and e found that the following matters w				e the court
First that5			,	
	•			~
	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	****************	*********	*************
The following questions as to the	ne interp	retation of t	he Consti	tution arose
in these proceedings, namely6				
•.	and Armed	* # *	9 8	
The above-stated questions of		W		
The above-stated questions of Supreme Court of Nigeria.		W		
	law are	referred fo	r the dec	ision of the
Supreme Court of Nigeria.	law are	referred fo	r the dec	ision of the
Supreme Court of Nigeria.	law are	referred fo	r the dec	ision of the

I State nature of action.

² State as concisely as possible the substantive averments of the plaintiff but not .

any part of the evidence.

3 State in like manner the defendant's answer and also any further allegation of counter claim made by the defendant.

4 State reply, if any.

State the facts found.

⁵ State the facts round. 6 Here state questions of law.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA (RESERVED POINT OF LAW) (Order 6, Rule 1)

		-			Between
	E	and	20 20	.ee	
D. C					2
Defend				•••••	, <i>,</i> ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
				action1	This is an a
50 55					
••••				tiff alleged2	The plainting
		٠٠٠٠٠ م	ď		•••
		. 9	10		
	•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ed*	idant answere	The defend
					·
OF 100 DO 100					20 01
			••••	tiff replied4	The plainti
			.		
		••••			
ion of the Supr	or the deci	reserved f	s of law are	wing question	The following
)		geria :	ourt of Nige
	3 8			thorf	First whath
	*	60	- R	25 (2)	
	•	7710022	70		
		•••••			
	lay of	nis			DATED at
TO.	v				TAILD GILL
, 19. -	. F			i i	
•:	•			0	9

I State nature of action. State nature of action.
 State as concisely as possible the substantive averments of the plaintiff but not any part of the evidence.
 State is like manner the defendant's answer and also any further allegation of counter-claim made by the defendant.
 State reply, if any.
 State the facts found.
 State questions of law on which a decision is required.

In the Supreme Court of Nigeria

NOTICE OF APPEAL

(Order 7, Rule 2)

	1	(Oraer	7, Kute 2)			
Between	••;•••••					.Plaintiff
g **		9/1	W		<i>8</i> 0	
6	(6)	5. C.	and		(A)	
2001 - 201 2001 - 201			75 50 W T			
	•••••	••••			1	Defendant
TAKE NOTICE	that the	plaintiff/	defendant	being d	issatisfied	with the
ecision/that part	of the dec	cision mo	re particul	arly state	d in paragra	iph 2* of
he	c	ourt cont	ained in t	he judgm	ent/order*	of
da					1400	-
ereby appeal to th	#10 may 200 house 10					
nd will at the he	25 255				- VE	
And the Appel		120				
ersons directly a	a transfer of the same of the				300000	graph 5.
2. Part of decis		lower co	urt compl	ained of.	•	
3. Grounds of	Appeal:		5 101	ger j		
(1)	200		V.			i
(2)				· *	it e	į
(3), etc.	. [, Pa		
4. Relief sough	t from the	e Suprem	e Court of	Nigeria.		1
5. Persons direc	ctly affect	ed by the	appeal:			
				e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e	owed.	!
	Name				Address	- 4
(I)	* 8	***		\$R		
(2)		e: 18	Vi.	(C)		2.5
(3), etc.	i e		# 19 12		III	
DATED this		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	c	lay of		19
	i	88 III	2 10	£2 52		
		3 3	Арре	llant, who	se address f	or service
* *			is	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
NoteAn addr	ess for se	rvice mu	st be giver	1.	* *	

<sup>Strike out words inapplicable.
† If appealing against the whole decision insert "whole decision".</sup>

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA NOTICE OF MOTION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL (Order 7, Rule 3)

.Plaintiff

	Y		E # 8	1000
	and .			
	.	······································	Defendar	nt
TAKE NOTICE that the Supreme	Court/High C	Court will be r	noved on th	ne
day of		IQ	át	
o'clock in the forenoon or as				
the hearing of an application for leav				
Court				
	1977		·······································	01
) // // (20			#E	
AND further take notice that the	he grounds of	this applicati	on are:—	
_				•)]
DATED this	day	of	, 19	•••
	1,,	••••••		· · ·
	Applicat who	nt or his legal i ose address for	epresentativ service	ne.
(8) #I	is		•••••	
To: THE REGISTRAR,		#/ #/	• .	
SUPREME COURT	OF NIGERIA/H	ICH COURT		
		-	6)	
And*				÷);
Note.— An address for service mu	st be given.			
	970	(168) pg		
• Insert name of respondent.				•
	*		\$2. 22	
- CIVII	L FORM 14	() () () () () () () () () ()	~ ,	
IN THE SUPREM	ME COURT OF N	IGERIA		
SUMMONS TO PARTIES BY			E RECOR	D
	er 7, Rule 7)			
8	**		100 V 9040	
Between			Appellan	t
* **	and		10	
***************************************			Responden	nt

	that all parties concerned are required to attend befo	
at the court offic	ce atthe	
day	, 19,	at the
hour of record of appea	in thenoon to proceed with settling	of the
DATED this	day of	19
		•
. 40		4
•••	Registrar of court below	,
12.20		•
	CIVIL FORM 15	
2	In the Supreme Court of Nigeria	
19	BOND FOR COSTS ON APPEAL	
	(Order 7, Rule 10)	
Know all m	MEN, by these presents, that we	
	of	
	of	
	of	
	The second secon	
	severally held and firmly bound toin the sum of	
executors, adm made, we bind	ey to be paid to the said	y to be our and
Sealed with	our seals.	· **
DATED the.	day of,	in the
year of our Lo	70 (2	
WHEREAS a	suit is now depending in the court at	*******
wherein the al	oove-bounden	••••••
is Plaintiff and is Defendant;	the said	······································
AND WHERE	as a judgment was given by the court therein, on the	
• ••••••	day offor the said	
filed Notice of	and the said	has
*	eas it is by law provided that the party appealing sh	all give

AND WHEREAS it is by law provided that the party appealing shall give security to the satisfaction of the Registrar of the court below for the due prosecution of the appeal and for the payment of any costs which may be ordered to be paid by the appellant.

AND WHEREAS the above	-named		
and		,	at the request of the
said	*	have	agreed to enter into
this obligation for the pur	pose aforesaid	1:	
Now the condition of th			
	an	d	
any or either of them shall by the appellant this obliga			
Signed, sealed and d	elivered	(L.S.)	
		(L.S.)	
in the presence of		(L.S.)	
	*	p (5)	••
新 瑟	2 2	•	
			1
7.0	OTALL EC	ND N.T. 16	
	CIVIL FO		
		OURT OF NIGERI	
	(Order 7, Rul		
Between,			Appellant(s)
	and		Respondent(s)
T d 1 in 1 Deci	of the		·
I, the undersigned Regis Court Do CERTIFY that no	trar of the	l in the above-n	amed case was duly
served upon			
	Se ⁻²		
1. Design least bossis	**************	A	
the Respondent herein.	e: 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	*	
DATED at	.this	day of	19
	, , ,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

Registrar of court below

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

CERTIFICATE OF REGISTRAR THAT CONDITIONS OF APPEAL HAVE BEEN FULFILLED

(Order 7, Rule 12 (1) (b))

Between	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			***************************************	Appellant
		and	٠	<i>E</i>	
					Respondent
I do hereby cert	fy that the	ne above-name ns of appeal i	ed Appellar mposed on	nt has duly ar him in the	nd punctually above-named
ase.		E1	¥		
DATED this		*************	day	of	19
		.4	95		
			Reg	istrar of cour	t below
HE REGISTRAR,	2.	001 80 5 3		0.3	01 12
SUPREME COUR	r of Nic	GERIA.	•	8 2	
			*		
**	3) kn				1
-		64 S4	70		ii) 98
		W.	25	4 *	*
		CIVIL FO	RM 18		
	IN THE	SUPREME CO	URT OF N	IGERIA	199
NOTICE	TO PA	RTIES OF	DISPATC	H OF REC	ORD
		(Order 7, Rt	ile 12 (2))		+:
	•	ee.			
Between		••••••		•••••	Appellan
14		ar	d		
		un	u .		. 80
				,	Respondent
Take notice the	at the rec Registrar	ord in the ab	ove-named ne Court o	appeal has t	his day been
		•			
	÷		Reg	istrar of cour	t below

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTICE BY RESPONDENT OF INTENTION TO CONTEND THAT DECISION OF COURT BELOW BE VARIED (Order 7, Rule 13)

2 A.	(0 /, 2	-3/	67
Between			Appellant
	-and		zppenum
			Respondent
TAKE NOTICE that	upon the hearing of	the above appeal the	Respondent
herein intends to cor	ntend that the decis	ion of the court belo	w dated the
varied as follows* :	day of	, 19	, shall be
AND TAKE NOTICE trely are as follows:—	that the grounds on	which the Responde	ent intends to
1. 2. 3. etc.			•
DATED this	day of	***************************************	, 19
e e e		Responde	nt
* State the variation	which will be asked	for.	
			3 * y
	CIVIL FORM	vI 20	
In	THE SUPREME COUR	T OF NIGERIA	
NOTICE OF INTE	ENTION TO CON FFIRMED ON GI	TEND THAT JUI ROUNDS OTHER HE COURT BELOV	THAN

and

.Appellant

	91			
	that upon the hear			
intends to conter	nd that the decision	of the court below	w dated the	
on grounds other	y of than those relied or	n by the court be	9, shall be low.	e affirmed
AND TAKE NOT rely are as follow	rice that the grounds:—	nds on which the	e Respondent	intends to
ı.	j			
2.	1 1	ī	36	- F
3. etc.		*		
DATED this	day of			10
			ence con control () who is a serior of	
			Respondent	
			70 18	
	CIVIL	FORM 21	a a g	¥1
ax) 2	In the Supremi	E COURT OF NIG	ERTA	• • •
NOTICE I		vi		***
NOTICE	Y RESPONDEN			SLY
*	UPON PRELIMI	INARY OBJEC	TION	
	(Order	7, Rule 14)		19e
	A ₁	ppeal No		, 19
	1. to 10. to		•76	
Between				Appellant
# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /# /#	8 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	and	*	
□ •				
			R	espondent
TAKE NOTICE to of this appeal, to is hereby given to	hat the Respondentely upon the follow you, vix:—	t herein named ing preliminary	intends, at the	e hearing whereof
AND TAKE NOTI	CE that the ground	s of the said obj	ection are as fo	llows :—
2.	8 A D. A.	570	(8)	10 20
3. etc.	253) ★17			
DATED this	day o	of		., 19
	MT	8		66-1 IFI
25 25	8			
	19 19 17	. Plaintiff	Defendant-Resp	ondent

To the above-named Plaintiff/Defendant-Appellant or his legal representative.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA NOTICE OF WITHDRAWAL OF APPEAL

(Order 7, Rule 17)

18	(,, 1tm	-//		*
83	* * * * *	11		••••••	
Between					. Appellant(s
9	s **	and		¥ 8	5 5 6 E
TAKE NOTICE wholly withdraw above-mentioned	(s) his/their a	pellant(s) he appeal again	erein in st (all)	tend(s) and	Respondent(s both hereb ent(s) in th
DATED at	th	is	day of		19
			W 20		- 11
9				Appellant((s)
					• •
		- :-			
THE REGISTRAR, SUPREME COM	RT OF NIGERIA	A. ;		-	5 W ₂
	(6) P ₁			9 4 20 0	1
And to				9	
	C	IVIL FORI	M 23	8 .	: •
		•	-0.000		
	IN THE SUI	PREME COUP	et of N	IGERIA	
NOTICE OF		WAL OF der 7, Rule		L BY AGRI	EEMENT
Between					Attellar
200000000000000000000000000000000000000					··· zzppoman
	¥ 8	and			
					D
	••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••				Responaer
Take NOTICE t	hat the above	appeal is v	vithdraw	n with the o	consent of a
Parties merces.			9 2	120	Q
DATED this		•••••	day	of	19
A STANDARD OF THE STANDARD OF					t x
			lppellant	or his legal	representativ

Respondent or his legal representative

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

CERTIFICATE AS TO NON-COMPLIANCE WITH CONDITIONS IMPOSED UPON A WOULD-BE APPELLANT

(Order 7, Rule 19)

Between		Plaintiff(s) Appellant(s)
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	an	
		Defendant(s) Respondent(s)
hereby certify tha	t the Appellant(s)	e Supreme Court of Nigeria Rules, in the above-named cause have/has s of Order 7, rules 9 and 10.
DATED at	this	day of19
	*	Registrar of the court below
E 827		
	E	
ă.	CIVIL FO	ORM 25
, i	IN THE SUPREME C	OURT OF NIGERIA
		HAT A PARTY DOES NOT EPRESENTED AT HEARING PEAL
8	(Order 7,	Rule 22)
(6) (6)		Appeal No
Between		Appellant
	an	ď
	······································	Respondent
hat I do not wish to	o be present in persopeal, but desire to	pellant/Respondent do hereby declare on or by counsel on the hearing of the submit the following arguments for
DATED this	day of.	, тд
		es established and the second and th

Appellant|Respondent

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

CERTIFICATE OF THE ORDER OF THE COURT

(Order 7, Rule 32)

APPEAL from the				
of the,		······		
dated the				n [5.
	1			
	20		· ·	octi.
		rass is a		тррешин
* * *	v.	*		
*		ii 20	5 55	
This appeal coming of			i i	
	- AV 11		. 19	
in the presence of			*	180
for the Appellant, and.				
for the Respondent.	• 11.		.6	•
I HEREBY CERTIFY tha	t an Order was m	nade as follows	:	
GIVEN under my hand	d and the Seal of t	he Court this		•••••••
day of		19		
, , , , , ,	e se ^E i	3 87		

Presiding Justice

^{*} Insert "Presiding Justice".

SECOND SCHEDULE CRIMINAL FORM 1

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTICE OF APPEAL FROM DECISION OF A COURT SITTING AS A COURT OF FIRST INSTANCE

(Order 8, Rule 3)	
The State v.	
To The Registrar of the	
I,having	-
been convicted of the offence of 1	(1) State the
and	offence, e.g. murder.
being now a prisoner in prison at	
or whose address for service is2	(2) Where
do hereby give notice of appeal against my conviction (particulars of which hereinafter appear) to the Court on the following grounds ³ :—	appellant for any reason not in cus- tody, set out address for
Signature or Mark of Appellant	service. (3) State as
Signature and address of Witness attesting Mark	clearly as you are able the grounds on which you desire
Dated this, 19	to appeal.
PARTICULARS OF TRIAL AND CONVICTION	
1. Date of trial	Fill in all
2. In what court tried	these parti-
3. Sentence	culars.
4. Whether questions of law now raised were raised at the trial	
You are required to answer the following question:—	
Do you desire to be present on the hearing of your appeal by the Court?	
If you do so desire, state the reasons upon which you submit the said Court should give you leave to be present.	
N.B.—The Court will consider your case and argument if put into writing by you or on your behalf. If you present your case and argument in writing, submit as fully as you think right your case and argument in support of your	ě

Note.—This form should only be used where there is a right of appeal without leave, that is to say, in an appeal from a conviction for murder by the High Court or in any other appeal in which an appeal as of right lies by

virtue of the Constitution or an express provision of law.

appeal [Order 9].

against your conviction.

CRIMINAL FORM 2

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL FROM DECISION OF A COURT SITTING AS A COURT OF FIRST INSTANCE

		(Order 8	, Rule 3)		
	2	# THE		•	
14 14	THE STATE v				
	To THE REGISTRAR	OF THE			
e. **					
vanere maken er make	Ť				havin
(1) State the	0				9 page 200 p \$\text{\$\tex{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$\text{\$
offence, e.g.		т с т			60 80
larceny, for-	been convicted of th	ne offence of			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
gery, etc.	- F				
(2) Where applicant for	and now being a pri	isoner in prison at.			
not in cus-		4 4 4 5		160 0	,
tody set out	(or whose address fo	or service is2)
address for	2		19		
service.	140	74	*		
(3) If the	and being desirous	of annealing agains	t my convi	ction/sentend	ces. DO HERER
appellant wishes to	GIVE NOTICE that I her	reby apply for leave	to appeal o	n the followi	ng grounds4:-
appeal					¥
against con-					
viction only			9		
he should					
strike out	56				
the word			65		26
"sentence". If he wishes			187	⁵⁰ -⊛	
to appeal					
against sen-					
tence only			E ::		
he should					4
strike out				*	
the word	★ ×				
"conviction".	20		*	•	
If he wishes to	194		G:	tome on Mari	k of Applicant
appeal		•	Signa	ure or inium	e oj Appucani
against con-		Ŷ.			
viction and					
sentence he	Sign	nature and address	of]		
should leave	250	(Sec.)	>		
in both	Wi	itness attesting Mar	k 1		
words.					
(4) State as				£0	T 92
clearly and		*		_	
concisely as	DATED this	day of.			19
possible the	DAILD HIS				
grounds on			21		
which you desire to					3
appeal	· 8	# D	X 0.	2 5	

PARTICULARS OF TRIAL AND CONVICTION	Fill in these
r. Date of trial	particulars.
2. In what court tried	
3. Sentence	#2016 XX E2 8
1. If you desire to be present when the Court considers your present application for leave to appeal, state:—	
(a) whether or not you are legally represented, and	
(b) the grounds on which you submit that the Court should give you leave to be present thereat.	
2. The Court will consider your case and argument if put in writing by you or on your behalf. If you present your case and argument in writing submit as fully as you think right your case and argument in support of your	
appeal. [Order 9].	•
State if you desire to be present at the final hearing of your appeal	
Note.—This form, suitably adapted, may also be used where the application for leave to appeal is made to the Federal Court of Appeal.	
CRIMINAL FORM 3	
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA	70
NOTICE OF APPEAL FROM DECISION OF A COURT IN ITS APPELLATE JURISDICTION	
(Order 8, Rule 3)	¥
vv.	
To The Registrar of the	8
Ihaving	197
I,having	
been convicted of the offence of 1	(1) State the
	offence, e.g. larceny, for-
now being a prisoner in prison at	gery, etc.
(or whose address for service is ²	(2) Where
	appellant for any reason
······································	not in cus- tody set out
	address for service.

	DO HEREBY GIVE NOTICE of appeal against the decision of the Federal Court of
(3) Set forth the grounds	Appealon the following grounds3-
on which you desire to appeal	
and specify the extent, if any, to	Cinnature on Mark of Assallant
which the appeal court varied the	Signature or Mark of Appellant
decision of the court of	Signature and address of
trial. It should also	Witness attesting Mark \[\int_{\cdots}
be stated	Truncis account 12anv)
whether the	
appeal is against conviction	Dated thisday of, 19
only or	
against sen- tence only,	
or against -	
both sen- tence and	
conviction.	
£1	
	PARTICULARS OF TRIAL AND CONVICTION
1	
Fill in all these parti-	1. Date of trial and sentence
culars.	2. In what court tried
	2. In what court diod
•	3. In what court appeal heard
	4. Sentence
*	 (1) If you desire to be present when the Court considers your appeal, state (a) whether or not you are legally represented, and
	(b) the grounds on which you submit that the Court should give you leave to be present there.
2	(2) The Court will consider your case and argument if put into writing by you or on your behalf. If you present your case and argument in writing submit as fully as you think right your case and argument in support of your appeal. [Order 9].
* 4	State if you desire to be present at the final hearing of your appeal
	Note.—This form should only be used when there is a right of appeal without leave by virtue of the Constitution or an express provision of law.

. 1	CRIMINAL	FORM 4		* 2:
y) (a 1 0 a) (6	IN THE SUPREME CO			(4)
	F APPLICATION FOR		TO A CONTROL TO A MATERIAL MANAGEMENT AND THE STATE OF TH	
DECISION	OF A COURT IN ITS	APPELLATE JURI	SDICTION	*: 12
	(Order 8, I	Rule 3)	新 な 85	
	9	***************************************		
	······································	***************************************	***************************************	1.
o The Regis	TRAR OF THE			
I			having	
*		w = ²⁸	-	- (=)
een convicte	d of the offence of 1	••••••	and d	(1) State (offence, e.
ow being pri	soner in prison at		F	arceny, for
				- 1505. ·
or whose add	ress for service is2			(2) Where applicant
		***************************************) r	ny reason not in cus
** *				ody set o
NS - 202	E.			service.
O HEBERY CIT	VE NOTICE THAT I hereby	apply for leave to app		3) Set fo
ecision of the	Federal Court of Appeal	on the following grou	$nds^3 : c$	he groun on which
9.0	8 4	* 1		you desire to appeal
14. 1 K			a	and speci
F:			i	f any, to
				which the court vari
114			t	the decision of the cou
				of trial. It
		α'	-5 11-12 b	e stated
34	527	Signature or Mark	- Committee Comm	whether t
	¥2			ippeal is
@.	G:t 1 _ 13 6 ~	¥ .	a	appeal is
E 14	Signature and address of	}·····	······································	against co viction or or against
		}	······································	ngainst co viction or or against sentence
	Signature and address of Witness attesting Mark	}	s s	rigainst coviction or or against sentence only, or against begainst be
DATED this	Witness attesting Mark	va va	s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s	against coviction or or against sentence only, or against be sentence and con-
DATED this.		va va	s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s s	against coviction or or against sentence only, or against be sentence
ď.	Witness attesting Mark	day of	19	against coviction or or against sentence only, or against be sentence and con-
ď.	Witness attesting Mark	day of	19	against coviction or or against sentence only, or against be sentence and con-
PAF	Witness attesting Mark	day of	ON	rill in all
PAF	Witness attesting Mark	L AND CONVICTION	ON I	against coviction on or against sentence only, or against be sentence and con-

3. In what court appeal heard.....

- (1) If you desire to be present when the Court considers your application for leave to appeal, state
 - (a) whether or not you are legally represented, and
 - (b) the grounds on which you submit that the Court should give you leave to be present-thereat.
- (2) The Court will consider your case and argument if put into writing by you or on your behalf. If you present your case and argument in writing submit as fully as you think right your case and argument in support of your appeal. [Order 9].

State if you desire to be present at the final hearing of your appeal...

Note.—This form, suitably adopted, may also be used when the application for leave to appeal is made to the Federal Court of Appeal.

CRIMINAL FORM 5

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTICE OF APPEAL (ON APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL BY PROSECUTOR)
(Order 8, Rule 3)
v
To The Registrar of
1,01
the prosecutor in the above case and being desirous of appealing against the
decision under section*of
DO HEREBY GIVE NOTICE OF APPEAL (or application for leave to appeal) on the following grounds:—
- Prosecutor
DATED thisday of19
PARTICULARS OF TRIAL AND CONVICTION
1. Date of trial
2. In what court tried
3. Nature of conviction
4. Sentence
Note.—This form, suitably adopted, may also be used when an application

for leave to appeal is made to the Federal Court of Appeal.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTIFICATION BY REGISTRAR OF THE FEDERAL COURT OF APPEAL OF RESULT OF APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO APPEAL

(Order 8, Rule 6)
The State v
To the Registrar of the supreme Court of Nigeria
I hereby give you notice that on theday
ofthe Federal Court of Appeal at
granted/refused an application for leave to appeal against conviction/sentence in the case of which particulars are set below.
DATED this, 19
Registrar of
PARTICULARS OF TRIAL AND CONVICTION
1. No. of case
2. Court of trial
3. Name of accused
4. Result of trial
Note.—The Registrar of the Federal Court of Appeal should forward with this notice the application for leave to appeal.
CRIMINAL FORM 7
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA
NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR EXTENSION OF THE TIME WITHIN WHICH TO APPEAL
(Order 8, Rule 5)
The State v
To the Registrar of the
I,having been convicted of the
offence of 1in the
court,
held atday

of19	and being now a priceper in
prison at	and being now a prisoner in
(or whose address for service is ²	\
give you notice that I hereby apply to	the Court for an extension of time
within which I may give Notice of Appe	eal (or Notice of Application for leave
to Appeal) on the grounds3 following:-	
K P S	a a a
	Signature or Mark of Applicant
	of \
Witness attesting Ma	rk
	1.55 St.
Dated thisday of	
You are required to send to the Re Form 1, Form 2, Form 3 or Form 4, which	gistrar of the Court, duly filled up
r State the offence, e.g. larceny, forgery,	etc.
2 Where applicant for any reason not in c 3 Set out clearly and concisely the reason the grounds on which you submit the C	s for the delay in giving such notice and
CRIMINAL	FORM 8
IN THE SUPREME CO	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
NOTIFICATION TO APPEI JUSTICE'S I	LLANT OF A SINGLE
(Order 8, 1	
6 8 2	
THE STATE v	
I hereby give you notice that a Just considered your application(s) for:	stice of the Supreme Court having
(a) Leave to appeal;	
for leave to appeal may be given;	ich notice of appeal or of application
(c) Permission to be present durin	g the hearing of any proceedings in
your appeal; (d) Admission to bail;	•
(e) Leave to withdraw abandonmen	ot of anneal ·
	5 1
has refused the application(s) marked	
granted your application(s) marked	
If you desire to have the above-mention refused, determined by the full Court, yo form (Form 9) and return it to me forth	ou are required to fill up the enclosed
DATED thisday of	, 19
	Signed
	Signed

To the above-named

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTICE OF APPEAL BY APPELLANT FROM REFUSAL OF A SINGLE JUSTICE

(Order 8, Rule 7)

1.	
THE STATE D	
	March March
To the Registrar of the Supreme (COURT OF NIGERIA
I,	having
received your notification that my appl	ication(s) for—
(a) Leave to appeal;	
(b) For extension of the time within for leave to appeal may be given;	n which notice of appeal or application
(c) Permission to me to be present in my appeal;	during the hearing of any proceedings
(d) Admission to bail;	
(e) Leave to withdraw abandonme	ent of appeal;
have been refused by a single Justice GIVE YOU NOTICE that I desire that the and determined by the Full Court (and	said application(s) shall be considered d that as I am not legally represented
I desire to be present at the determina	tion of my said application(s))*
	•
	a cut
	Signature or Mark of Appellant
	Signature of Lizarit of Experience
Signature and address of	ົງ
Witness attesting Man	k}
Witness attesting wiarr	•)
DATED thisd	ay of, 19
If you desire to state any reasons your original notice upon which you grant your said application(s), you may	in addition to those set out by you in submit that the Full Court should

^{*} Strike out if you do not desire to be present.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA RECOGNIZANCE OF BAIL OF APPELLANT (Order 8, Rule 14)

The State v
BE IT REMEMBERED THAT WHEREAS
was convicted ofon the
day of
toand now is in lawful custody
in prison at
on entering into his own Recognizances in the sum of ₩
(with sureties each in the sum of N), the said
personally cometh before me the undersigned, being the
to owe to the Head of the Federal Military Government the said sum of M
fail in the condition endorsed.
Taken and acknowledged thisday of, 19
at,before me.
(State office)

CONDITION -

force and effect.

The following to be filled up by the Appellant and signed by him—
When released on bail my address for service, to which any Notices, etc.
are to be addressed, will be as follows:—

Signature of Appellant

CRIMINAL FORM 11.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA RECOGNIZANCE OF APPELLANT'S SURETIES (Order & Rule 14)

The State v.
BE IT REMEMBERED that on thisday of
of
and
of
came before me
the undersigned being the
severally acknowledged themselves to owe to the Head of the Federal
Military Government the several sums following, that is to say, the said
the sum of Nand the said
His heirs and successors, if
now in lawful custody in prison
atfail in the condition hereon endorsed.
TAKEN AND ACKNOWLEDGED before me the undersigned, the day and year first above-mentioned.
Magistrate Registrar
Condition
The condition of the within written Recognizance is such that whereas
the said having been convicted ofand
now in such lawful custody as before-mentioned (under a sentence of
for such offence), has duly appealed to the Court against his said conviction (and sentence), and having applied to the said Court for bail, pending the determination of his said appeal, has been granted
bail on his entering into recognizances in the sum of №
with sureties each in the sum of ₩

CRIMINAL FORM 12

In the Supreme Court of Nigeria

WARRANT FOR ARREST OF APPELLANT ON BAIL

(Order 8, Rule 14)
The State v.
To the Constables of the Police Force (or Court Messengers or as the
CASE MAY BE), AND TO THE
of the Prison at
WHEREAS, an Appellant
in the Court has been released on bail, and it has now been ordered by the
said Court that a Warrant be issued for the apprehension of the said
These are therefore to command you the said Constables (or Court Mes-
sengers or as the case may be) forthwith to apprehend the said
and bring him to theof
the said prison and there deliver him with this warrant into the custody of
said
saidare hereby
required to receive the saidinto your custody in the said prison and there safely to keep him until further order of the said Court.
Presiding Justice

day of.

DATED this.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA NOTICE OF ABANDONMENT OF APPEAL (Order 8, Rule 19)

THE STATE v	·····		
I,		having b	een convicted of
	in tl	he	
Court atof appealing to the	e Court against my	and having said conviction (or	g been desirous the sentence of
to prosecute my ar	ion) do hereby give y	ou notice that I do noteby abandon all furters.	ot intend further
		•	
		Signature or Ma	rk of Appellant
207			
Si	gnature and address of	`]	
	•	}	
И	Vitness attesting Mark		
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
DATED this	day of		19
170 4 47		E COURT OF NIGERL	# 123 EX
10 THE REGISTA	MAR OF THE DOLLER	E COOKE OF THEE	
Res		90.00	987
	CRIMINAL	FORM 14	
	100		
• :	IN THE SUPREME C	OURT OF INIGERIA	
NOTIFIC	CATION OF ABAN (Order 8,	NDONMENT OF A	APPEAL
THE STATE V		20	3
THE STATE V		,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	***************************************
To THE DIRECTOR	of Public Prosect	JTION OF*	
То			
This is to give	you notice that I ha	ave this day received	from the above-
'named			

*	
20 20	a notice of abandonment of all proceedings in regard to his appeal to the
	Court. The said notice is datedday of, 19
	By rule 19 of the Supreme Court Rules, 1977, upon the notice of abandonment being given the appeal shall be deemed to have been dismissed by the Court.
* 2	DATED thisday of, 19
18	Registrar of the Court
	* Send copies addressed to:— (a) The Permanent Secretary to the appropriate Ministry (if a capital case). (b) The Director of Public Prosecutions or other respondent, (c) The Prison authority and (d) The Registry of the court below.
W.	CRIMINAL FORM 15
e ¹⁰	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA
3	NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO WITHDRAW
	AN ABANDONMENT OF APPEAL
	(Order 8, Rule 20)
(• .**	To the Registrar, Supreme Court of Nigeria
(1) Here state the	I,
offence, e.g. larceny, for- gery, etc.	having been convicted of the offence of1
gery, etc.	and now being a prisoner in prison
*	at(or) whose address for service
	is
	and having duly sent a notice that I desired to appeal to the Supreme Court of Nigeria, and having abandoned my appeal;
(2) Set out as clearly and conci- sely as	Give you Notice, that I hereby apply to the Supreme Court of Nigeria for leave to withdraw my Notice of Abandonment, in the special circumstances following ² :—
possible the special reasons for	Signature of Mark of Applicant
giving such notice and the grounds	Signature and address of
on which you submit the Court	Witness attesting Mark
should allow you to with- draw the	DATED thisday of, 19
abandon- ment.	Note: Form 7—Notice of Application for extension of time—must be filled up and sent with this Notice to the Registrar.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

ORDER TO WITNESS TO ATTEND COURT FOR EXAMINATION (Order 8, Rule 21 (1))

THE STATE	ข	,,.,.,.,.,.	•••••		
Го		(Name of u	oitness)		
_			* 1	-	- 1
of		(Addre	ess)	·•••••••	
WHEREAS or attend and be the above-nan	examined as a	shown to the a witness bef	c Court you core such Cou	have been ourt upon the	rdered to appeal of
This is to gi	ve you notice t	o attend befo	re the said Co	ourt at	
on		the			day
said time and	noon. place any bo	oks, papers o	or other thing	gs relating t	o'clock in you at the o the said
					* 8
		W W			
σ_{g}	·	* (2)	Regis	trar of the C	ourt
				*	*
DATED the.		day of	••••	•••••	, 19
ir e	CR	RIMINAL F	ORM 17		
(7)	IN THE	SUPREME CO	URT OF NIGER	IA .	
APPELLA	NT'S APPLI	CATION F Order 8, Rule		IER WITN	ESSES
THE STATE	v			••••	
naving appeale	ed to the Cour Court shall ord be examined	t, hereby requient the the the the the witne	uest you to ta sses hereinafi	ke notice the ter specified	at I desire to attend
250		5.*			
19	9000 100	81	Signature	or Mark of A	Appellant
	Signature a	md address of	· ງ	. • •••••••	
	Witness at	testing Mark	<i></i>		

Supreme Court Rules

DATED thisday of, 19
You are required to fill up the following and sign the same.
1. Name and addresses of witnesses
2. Whether such witnesses have been examined at trial
3. If not, state the reason why they were not so examined
•
4. On what matters do you wish them to be examined on the appeal?
State shortly the evidence you think they can give.
CRIMINAL FORM 18
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA
NOTICE TO WITNESS TO ATTEND BEFORE AN EXAMINER
(Order 8, Rule 21 (5))
The State v
То
(Name of witness)
of(Address of witness)
Whereas on good cause shown to the Court you have been ordered to be examined as a witness upon the appeal of the above-named, and your deposition to be taken for the use of the said Court.
This is to give you notice to attend at
on theday of
before
noon.
You are also required to have with you at the said time and place any books, papers or other things under your control or in your possession in any manner relating to the said appeal of which you have had notice so to produce.
Registrar of the Court
Registrat of the Court
DATED the day of

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

CAPTION FOR DEPOSITION OF WITNESS EXAMINED BEFORE EXAMINER (Order 8, Rule 21 (7))

THE STATE v.	
The deposition (on oath) taken before me the examiner duly appointed by the Court in that behalf	ne undersigned, being an
of	Name of witness)
of	nined before me under an
in the presence of the said	n.
•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
(or of his professional representative) and the Resp	ondent at
which said Appellant (or his professional repress had full opportunity of asking questions of the said depositions following were read by me before bein witnesses respectively.	entative) and Respondent id witnesses, to whom the
The deposition of	8 8 P
The deposition of	
ofadministered by me) said as follows :—	who (upon oath duly
75	
Dated thisday of	, 19
	Examiner
CRIMINAL FORM 20	
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NI	GERIA
NOTIFICATION TO APPELLANT OF RESU	•
	DI OF AFFLICATION
(Order 8, Rule 23 (1))	300 A
THE STATE v	
TO THE ABOVE-NAMED APPELLANT	10 gr 40

This is to give you notice that the Court has considered the matter of your application for:—

(a) leave to appeal to the said Court;

(b) leave to extend the time within which you may give notice or of application for leave to appeal;	of appeal
(c) permission to be present during the proceedings in your a	ippeal;
(d) admission to bail;	63
(e) leave to withdraw abandonment of appeal;	
and has finally determined the same and has this day given to the effect following:	judgment
DATED thisday of	, 19

Registrar of the Co	nurt
CRIMINAL FORM 21	
IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA	4
	TITON
NOTICE TO AUTHORITIES OF RESULT OF APPLICA (Order 8, Rule 23 (1))	TION
	F. 933
The State v.	
To the Director of Public Prosecutions of	*
То	
This is to give you notice that the above-mentioned having app	lied for
(a) leave to appeal to the said Court;	ined for—
(b) leave to extend the time within which he may give notice	of appeal
or of an application for leave to appeal;	or appear
(c) permission to be present during the proceedings in his app	peal;
(d) admission to bail;	9 41
(e) leave to withdraw abandonment of appeal;	42
the Court has this day finally determined his said applications given judgment to the effect following:	and has
x a s	
DATED thisday of	, 19
Registrar of the Co	urt i ·
	4

^{*} Send copies addressed to:

(a) The Director of Public Prosecutions or other respondent.

(b) The Prison authority and

(c) The Registrar of the court below.

† Here set out the decision of the Court.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA

NOTIFICATION TO APPELLANT OF THE RESULT OF HIS APPEAL

APPEAL (Order 8, Rule 23 (1))

THE STATE V.	
To the above-n	AMED APPELLANT
This is to give your appeal has to the effect follo	you notice that the Court having considered the matter of finally determined the same and has this day given judgment owing:—
DATED this	day of, 19
	₫ •
	Registrar of the Court
	CRIMINAL FORM 23
	IN THE SUPREME COURT OF NIGERIA
NOTICE	TO AUTHORITIES OF RESULT OF APPEAL
2 £	(Order 8, Rules 23 and 24)
THE STATE v.	
To the Directo	or of Public Prosecutions of*
То	
mi · · · ·	e you notice that the above-named having appealed against
his conviction of	the offence of
before the	the offence of
sentence of	passed
upon him for th	e offence ofby
	Court, the Court rmined the said appeal, and has this day given judgment fect following†:—
DATED this	day of, 19
**	Signed, Signed,
***	Registrar of the Court
(b) The appr	ddressed to: nament Secretary to the appropriate Ministry (if a capital case). opriate Director of Public Prosecutions or other respondent.

(d) The Registrar of the court below. Here set out the decision of the Court.

THIRD SCHEDULE

FEES IN CIVIL AND CRIMINAL MATTERS

(Order I, Rule 6)

A. O	riginal Jurisdiction		37	
(i)		r	N :	K
*	between States		lo fee harge	
(::)	To all other manualisms for the armine has the Original	c ·.		
(11)	In all other proceedings for the exercise by the Court original jurisdiction:	of its		
On	application under Order 2, rule 2, for the recovery of a specified sum:—	#0 #0	250	
- (a) Not exceeding N200		8 c	00
(b) Exceeding N200: per N100 or part thereof			
(4	c) Maximum fee		80 0	
	an account to be taken and payment of the sum found due		20 0	0
	possession of property, as for the sum claimed in lieu of the roperty			
	application for warrant to detain a ship		10 0	0
	other relief or assistance not specially provided for		20 0	
On	the filing of any other document with the Registrar		4 0	0
On	the appointment and swearing of appraisers		31200	
Qn	the delivery of goods to a purchaser	• •	4 0	0
On	the sale of goods:—			
	every \$\fraction of \fraction of the price		2 0	0
For And	attending the removal of goods	• • •	4 0	0
ti	onal day, a further fee of		4 0	0
3. Ap	pellate Jurisdiction			83
On	filing Notice of Appeal against a final judgment or decision	on	15 0	0
	Respondent's Notice of intention to contend that decision		J	
	court below be varied		15 00	0
	filing Notice of Appeal against an interlocutory order or		-	
	ecision	. • •	6 00	0
	filing motion for leave to appeal		15 00	
	filing Notice of Appeal where leave granted	.• •	3 00	٥.
On	filing motion for extension of time :—			
if	the time has not yet expired	••	7 59	2
if	the time has already expired	••	30 00	0
On :	filing any motion not otherwise provided for	••	6 00	2
On f	iling motion for stay of execution (if application is made separate motion)	1	6 00	3
				53
	filing amended or additional grounds of appeal:	e: 10	1.5	
	filed at least three weeks before the date fixed for the con encement of the sitting for which the appeal is set down	1-	3 00	>

	and the second s			
	if filed less than three weeks but at least two clear days befo	re	N	k
	such date		9	00
	if filed later, but before the hearing of the appeal		18	00
	On amending or adding to grounds of appeal by leave or direc			
	tion of the Court at the hearing		30	00
	Hearing fee payable in advance		12	
	On filing motion to restore appeal dismissed under Order 7			** E
	rule 19	• •	30	00
	On filing motion to restore appeal struck out under Order 7,	*		
	rule 23		15	00
	On filing motion to set aside and re-hear appeal determined		-	
	ex parte		30	00
	On filing motion to set aside Taxing Officer's decision or orde		3	
	On every certificate of the order of the Supreme Court (made		Э	-
	on the final determination of appeals under Order 7, rule 32	\$	6	00
	on the determination of appoint disease of the 1, the 32	,	•	
	* **			20
C	. General			
	1. For swearing an affidavit or making a declaration, per depo	ment	0	60
	For marking any paper annexed to an affidavit or declaration	ALCEAC		15
	On filing an affidavit	• • •		38
	On fling a pagewiter hand			00
	On fling one other document or only it			
	On instiffered of annual a formation of	••		38
		• •		45
6	For the drawing up of any order or judgment	• •		00
	For every sobpoena			38
90	On warrant for prisoner to give evidence			75
	On inspection of any document or judgment		0	15
	For searching the archives: for each period of six months or			_
	part thereof	••		38
	For preparing a copy where authorised: per folio of 72 words	•	0	06
	On lodging a bill of costs for taxation including taxation for			*
	the first twenty folios	• •	3	00
	For every ten folios or part thereof after the first twenty		1	50
	المراب والمساور والمراب والمراب والمراب والمساور والمساور والمراب	520 N 7	2	10.00

- 2. The fee for the service of any document or process shall be that charged for such service by the High Court having jurisdiction in the place where service is to be effected.
- 3. The allowances payable to witnesses shall be those payable to witnesses in the High Court having jurisdiction in the place where the evidence of such witnesses is taken.
- 4. The fee for the services of a special interpreter of a language not in common use shall be that charged for such services by the High Court having jurisdiction in the place where such services are rendered.

- 5. The following fees in connection with appeals are assessable in accordance with the rules in force in the court below, and are not prescribed by these Rules:—
 - (a) fees for any application made to and determinable by the court below;
 - (b) fees for the settling and preparation of the record of appeal, for the lodging of a bond to secure the costs of an appeal, and for the Registrar's certificate that the conditions of appeal have been fulfilled.

MADE by the Supreme Court of Nigeria on the 18th day of July 1977.

D. A. R. ALEXANDER, Chief Justice of Nigeria

UDO UDOMA, Justice of the Supreme Court

A. FATAYI-WILLIAMS, Justice of the Supreme Court

G. S. SOWEMIMO, Justice of the Supreme Court

A. G. IRIKEFE, Justice of the Supreme Court

M. Bello, Justice of the Supreme Court

C. IDIGBE,
Justice of the Supreme Court

A. O. OBASEKI, Justice of the Supreme Court L.N. 49 of 1977

TRADE DISPUTES DECREE 1976 (1976 No. 7)

Trade Dispute (The Nigerian Textile Mills Ltd. and Ikeja Textile Workers' Union) Confirmation of Award Notice 1977

Pursuant to the provisions of section 9 (3) of the Trade Disputes Decree of 1976, the Industrial Arbitration Panel Award made on 16th December 1976 and set out in the Schedule hereto, has been confirmed by me, the Federal Commissioner for Labour, and shall have effect as so confirmed in accordance with that provision.

SCHEDULE

Name of Arbitration Tribunal, etc.

Term of Award

The Nigerian Textile Mills Ltd.

and Ikeja Textile Workers' Union

"The Tribunal makes award as follows:-(1) There shall be a Canteen Management Committee composed of :-

- (i) 4 Management Representatives including the Personnel Manager who shall be the Chairman of the Committee:
- (ii) 5 Workers' Representatives;
- (iii) 4 Senior Staff Representatives; and
- (iv) 1 Ex-Officio member-the Catering Officer.
- Provided that these numbers may, by agreement of all the parties represented, be altered from
- time to time. (2) The functions of the Committee shall be— Generally, to run the affairs of the canteen as a viable concern but so that "staffing" and "finance" remain Management functions.
- (3) The canteen shall at all times be sufficiently staffed and financed by the Company.
- (4) The Company shall provide all necessary amenities."

DATED at Lagos this 7th day of July 1977.

Major-General H. E. O. Adefope, Federal Commissioner for Labour

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note does not form part of the above Notice but is intended to explain its effects)

The Notice confirms the award by the Industrial Arbitration Panel in respect of the trade dispute which arose between the Nigerian Textile Mills Ltd, and Ikeja Textile Workers' Union.